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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby report that for the year
2014 the Company together with its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) achieved a sale revenue of HK$1,357.1 million,
representing an increase of 2.7% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year, the profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company was HK$170.1 million,
representing a decrease of 41.7% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. Such decrease is
primarily attributable to a one-off gain of HK$120.0 million
arising from the completion of disposal of 50% equity
interest in a joint venture in 2013. Basic earnings per share
was HK9.55 cents.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK2.6 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: HK3.0 cents), amounting to a total dividend of
HK$52.8 million. Subject to approval by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
dividend will be distributed on or about 31 July 2015.

AANBRRAFBREFEBRZEBRBERAAD ([ARQ
ANESE([EFg])EM 2045 KR F R
EWBAa ([A&EE])BERHESKAL37.18
BT BEFREPER2.7% KD GIKEEMN
A AB1701BEEB T BREFRBPRMA41.7% °
ZRLEBHRP201B3FETKEER —BEAEERA
Z50%R% A AE 5 15120.08 B8 T — IR MU S
el e SR EREF A9.555 1 -

EECEEMEE2014F12A31B 1L FEIRMAA
BER2.6811 (20134 : 3.081ll) - A5+ &£52.8
BEBL - FARARIBREREERRAFTFAE £
g% BREBR2015F7831HBEAIE DK
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During the past year, through enhancing its scientific
research investments, grasping foreign and domestic
markets opportunities and expanding its marketing
network, the Group continuously launched leading smart
card chips products capturing the needs of customers
from sector such as the social security, telecommunication
and identity authentication, and thereby consolidated and
enhanced its leading position in the industry. At the same
time, to develop new chips business arena, the Group
also continued to increase its investments in research and
development in chips for the financial industry and the
Global Positioning System sector, and continued to step up
its efforts in market expansion.

In June 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of
China Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd (“CEC
Technology”). CEC Technology and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development, construction
and operation of industrial parks in Guangxi, Shaanxi and
Hainan in the PRC. The acquisition provided the Group with
an opportunity to diversify into the electronic information
technology industrial park sector and complemented with
the Group's existing information technology facilities with
a view to enhance the quality of assets held and achieve
growth for the Group.

To ensure its sustainable development, the Group has
proactively explored various financing channels during
2014 to strengthen its capital base and financial position.

In January 2014, with the tremendous assistance from CEC
and through its credit enhancement support, the Company
successfully issued a 4.70% unsecured bonds due 2017 in
the principal amount of RMB2,750 million. The proceeds
from this bond will set a solid foundation for the future
development of Company. In addition, the Group raised
fund of HK$536.3 million through a share placement in
September 2014, which has provided the Group with
further working capital, broadened our shareholder and
equity bases, and facilitated future development of the
Group's business.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBRE

Looking forward into 2015, under CEC'’s strategic direction
of “adapting to new economic norm, persisting to make
progress while ensuring stability”, the Group will strive
to establish new thinking on scientific development and
continue to carry on its technology investments and
innovation development. With the goals of transformation,
upgrading, quality improvement and efficiency escalation,
the Group will further bring its business development into a
new stage.

Mr. Yin Yongli resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company in May 2014. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank Mr. Yin for his invaluable
contributions over the years.

Mr. Liu Jinping resigned as executive director of the
Company in February 2015. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to thank Mr. Liu for his invaluable contributions
over the years.

On behalf of the Board, | am delighted to welcome Mr.
Dong Haoran as non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Dong, with extensive experience and impressive
credentials, will no doubt extend the diversity and refresh
the talent base of the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
members for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
I would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
co-operation and support.

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 amounted to HK$1,357.1 million, representing
a slight increase of 2.7% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$170.1 million,
representing a decrease of 41.7% when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year, and the basic
earnings per share was HK9.55 cents (2013: HK17.26
cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group's integrated circuits design operation comprises
the design of integrated circuits chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are mainly
used in smart cards such as identity cards, social security
cards, telecommunication cards and electricity cards.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
obtained 21 new patents, owned 11 computer software
copyrights, and registered 28 integrated circuits layout
designs.

Due to the further intensification of market price
competition in 2014, the average selling prices of
integrated circuits chip products were generally lower when
comparing with those of the 2013. The Group has stepped
up its effort in cost control and expanded the market share
of its products. Through successfully boosting the sales
of some of our main products, the overall sales volume
increased by 52.3% for the year ended 31 December 2014,
which compensated the impact of the decrease in the
average selling prices of integrated circuits chip products
on the revenue for the year. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2014 amounted to HK$1,351.7 million,
representing a slight increase of 3.3% when comparing
with the corresponding period of last year. During the year
under review, wage level within the industry and the overall
operating costs generally increased, and have exerted
pressure on the profitability of the integrated circuits design
operation.
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e § g
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERBNWR DM

Research and development costs were HK$214.2 million in
2014 (2013: HK$213.0 million), which represented 15.8%
of the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: 16.3%). Research and development during the
year primarily focused on the EMV card, mobile payment
card, RFID (“radio frequency identification”) and Global
Positioning System chip products.

Government grants recognised as income increased
by 140.0% to HK$62.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 resulted from more government subsidies
for research and development costs incurred in the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, profit attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$326.1 million,
representing an increase of 19.3% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014 included the income from reversal of impairment
provision for trade receivables of HK$38.3 million during
the year while the corresponding period’s results included
an impairment provision for trade receivables of HK$40.2
million.

Electronic information technology industrial parks
operation

The Group’s electronic information technology industrial
parks operation comprises:

1. Hainan Resort Software Community (/& & 4 A&
R (“Hainan RSC”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by Hainan Resort Software
Community Investment and Development Co., Ltd
(BEERRHEREZERARAR]), an associate
company of the Group;

2. CEC Xi'an Industrial Park (FEIEFHALZEXE)
("Xi'an Industrial Park”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by China Electronics Xi‘an
Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd (A& F 7%
EXEBEZEEARZAR), a subsidiary of the Group;
and

2014F 2R EKABEX RN AB21428E B T
(20134 :213.0H BB L) ' HE E2014%12A4
3THIEFEWA Z15.8% (20135 :16.3% ) ° F
NREEARTEAERSRICK BEXHFR-
RFID (GG BEF R ] ) REM RS Em 2
%o

ERAEEREE2014F12A31BIEFEEER
o KB BE Ak AN S 2 BT Bh g 0 F IR B RE
RAEWAZBIF#HE EFA140.0%262.65 88
7T|:o

HE2014F12A31BIEFE ARAEEZHA
EFREMEF A3261BEEBE L REFREB LA
19.3% & £2014F12A31MH It FE > AR Al #E
B AERGENTEEE SRR ERERD
ZWA3SIEEB L MEAFR XL BIE40.2
BERBTLZESERBWGERERE-

BFERENELEEY

AEEZETEERMEXEXHERE:

1. BEARSMHE (ERARRER]) &
BEmASEZBERREREREMGE
REZRERAAZERE BHRIER:

2. PTHEFAREXR ([AZEXE]) %
BEaASEZHBARTHEFALE
XERBERBRARZERD BREEHE:
K

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

3. CEC Beihai Industrial Park (FFEIE Fit/BEXE)
("Beihai Industrial Park”), which is wholly-owned,
developed and managed by China Electronics Beihai
Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd ( FEE T8
EXEERAMRAE]) ("CEC Beihai”), a subsidiary
of the Group.

Hainan RSC

Hainan RSC is situated in Hainan, with a planned total
site area of 3,000 Mu, of which approximately 1,790
Mu of land has already been acquired, and application
to the government for the purchase of the remaining
approximately 1,210 Mu is in progress. The park targets
at enterprises engaging in software research, software
outsourcing and information technology training, as well as
call centres and internet media. The overall planning of the
park includes four functional zones: namely start-up zone,
large-scale enterprises zone, livelihood-supporting zone and
enterprise self-established zone. The start-up zone consists
of Plot A and Plot B with a total site area of approximately
350 Mu, which now consists of 26 office buildings in Plot
A, 29 office buildings in Plot B, an incubation building, and
Laocheng Economic Development Zone Administration
Affairs Service Centre, etc. The large-scale enterprises zone
is located at Plot C, which is in the middle of Hainan RSC.
It is customised specifically for enterprises with over 500
employees, occupying a site area of approximately 490 Mu
and will be constructed along the riverside with natural
landscape of water flowing beneath a small bridge. The
livelihood-supporting zone consists of Plot D, Plot E and
Plot G, which will include five-star hotels, Meilun Tertiary
Time Tropical Style Commercial Street (3= # 25 = B fd
HEREIBEES), and youth entrepreneurship blocks
zone, etc. It mainly offers high-quality leisure, shopping,
accommodation, conference, food and beverages, and
recreational services for the park. The enterprise self-
established zone will be a self-built “park within park”, and
catering for a conglomerate’s need. With the land provided
by Hainan RSC, subject to complying with the overall
planning requirement of Hainan RSC, enterprises can
construct their own parks according to their own needs.

3. FHEFILSEXR ([LLEBEXE]) %
BEmASEZHBARTEEFILEE
XEERARQAR(FELEEER
B BERNMNEE-

B EREE (IR

AR GRMN/ERE B8 HEEA3,000
il B A 41,790/ - FI&R491,2108A £ b IE
FRBNHEEEE BR 2 BECERRSTH
o BN R E MBS A RET R L K&
PBREB X -BREERAISERLSE
BrER £ERERUARCEAEZRIE A
@ o BB IEA BHIYE - AEIEAI3508 - B IE
Attt 382618 &= F 12 - Bib 38290 = F1E - (L KiE
REBLSBREREBRERLZ - HECERMRN
BRI AR E AP IRCH R ARAR500 A LA £
ETEH - (hH #4908 iZ B G EKTE B R
K-BARK -EERER  2IED E-GHIE - #§
BERELARERLE EhF=-KMEAXTRBHE
¥EHNMEFEXEEREE FERERRHEERE
KA By 6 2% BN REERB -
BEESEREECERFETEXIEFR] -
BEAEREREGEREL D CEEFTAERAE
HEWMAIETREBESFTEZATER:.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

Mingyue Ju residential development project is
located at Plot B in the start-up zone with a total
gross floor area of approximately 34,000 square
metres. The construction of Mingyue Ju was
completed in December 2014. Mingyue Ju is held
for sale and, of which approximately 14,000 square
metres were sold as at 31 December 2014.

7 office buildings in Plot B with a total gross floor
area of approximately 13,000 square metres were
sold during the year.

The construction of Meilun Tertiary Time Tropical
Style Commercial Street in Plot E has commenced
in the first half of 2013. It occupies a site area
of approximately 90 Mu. Its overall construction
planning and design covers 16 blocks of building
with a total gross floor area of 72,000 square
metres. The gross floor area of these buildings
ranges from 300 to 6,000 square metres. The
construction of the commercial street is substantially
completed and grand opening is scheduled in the
first half of 2015. Upon completion, the commercial
street is intended to be held for rental purposes.
Pre-marketing and pre-leasing went well as at 31
December 2014.

The large-scale enterprises zone in Plot C consists
of five phases, and construction has commenced
in the first half of 2014. Phase | consists of 13
office buildings with a total gross floor area of
43,000 square metres. The gross floor area of these
buildings ranges from 1,600 to 10,000 square
metres. The main structure of 8 office buildings
were topped off as at 31 December 2014 and the
construction of the 13 office buildings of Phase |
is scheduled for completion in the second half of
2015. Upon completion, they are intended to be
held for rental purposes.

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

V. Youth entrepreneurship blocks zone in Plot G is
planned to consist of three phases. Phase | consists
of 3 residential buildings with a total gross floor
area of 96,000 square metres, and construction
has commenced in the first half of 2014. As at 31
December 2014, the main structure was nearly
topped off and the construction is scheduled for
completion in the second half of 2015. Upon
completion, it is intended to be held for sale.

VI. In respect of business solicitation, Hainan RSC has
carried out an in-depth co-operation with Shenzhen
Tencent Computer Systems Company Limited
(RIIT T EHZFBR DA (“Tencent
(Shenzhen)”), and has inaugurated the internet
industrial cluster massive plan in Hainan, with an
aim to develop Hainan RSC as an internet industrial
cluster zone as well as an international internet
economic demonstration zone in Hainan. The co-
operation with Tencent (Shenzhen) includes the joint
construction of Tencent Venture Platform.

Xi'an Industrial Park

Xi'an Industrial Park is situated in Xi‘an and occupies
a site area of 470 Mu, of which 202 Mu of land has
already been acquired, and application for the purchase
of the rest from the government is in progress. The park
targets at enterprises engaging in producer and consumer
information services industries such as cloud computing
services, integrated circuit design, software research and
development, information services, information security
and electronic commerce. The overall planning of the
industrial park is substantially completed.

Phase | consists of 5 office buildings. The gross floor area
of No. 1 to No. 4 office building ranges from 2,000 to
4,000 square metres, and the gross floor area of No. 5
office building is 17,000 square metres. The construction of
Phase | is substantially completed. No. 1 to No. 4 building
of Phase | are intended to be held for sale. No. 1 and No.
2 building were pre-sold to Huada Electronics, and No. 3
and No. 4 building are currently at the pre-marketing stage.
No. 5 building of Phase | is intended to be held for rental
purposes.

V. Gt MBEFRIEFTEFE H» = HME-
—H AR ABE  BEKEMAEEA6,000
FHK R2014F F¥FFHERR EHE
2014F12A3 1B X IREEHEHIE 78
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENw®E DM

Phase Il consists of 9 buildings. No. 1 to No. 7 building are
single block of office building with gross floor area ranges
from 2,000 to 6,000 square metres, and No. 8 office
building’s gross floor area is 50,000 square metres. No. 9
building is a steel-structured two-storey training centre with
a gross floor area of 7,000 square metres. The construction
of No. 9 building of Phase Il has commenced in the first
half of 2014 and is scheduled for completion in the first
half of 2015. Construction of No. 1 to No. 8 building of
Phase Il has commenced in the second half of 2014 and is
scheduled for completion in 2015. No. 1 to No. 7 building
are intended to be held for sale and are currently at the
pre-marketing stage. No. 9 building is intended to be held
for rental purposes and will be leased out for a term of
10 years upon completion. No. 8 building of Phase Il is
intended to be held for rental purposes.

Beihai Industrial Park

Beihai Industrial Park is situated in Beihai, Guangxi. The
park targets at manufacturers of computers and computer
storage, as well as enterprises engaging in software
research and services, and the production of key parts of
LCD monitors and A/D power.

CEC Beihai has been actively negotiating with the
People’s Government of Beihai on the joint development
and construction of Beibu Gulf Eco-Wisdom Electronics
City (Jb B EE B £/ FEFI) . This project is built on
the existing Beihai Industrial Park, oriented by high and
new technology industries, and adopted the Wisdom
City and 10C construction concept as the means to
excel a new generation of industrial-urban integration
demonstration zone. The objective is to establish Beibu
Gulf Eco-Wisdom Electronics City as the engine for the
industrial development and urban construction of Beibu
Gulf. In 2014, the site selection of the land with an area
of approximately 400 Mu for the start-up zone of this
project and the related feasibility study analysis have been
completed. CEC Beihai is currently conducting an analysis
of the industrial development for the start-up zone,
and is negotiating the specific terms of the cooperation
agreement with the local government. In addition, CEC
Beihai has been actively communicating with relevant
government departments for the preparation of various
preliminary works for the purchase of a piece of land
with a site area of approximately 170 Mu designated for
commercial development by the seaside.

“HAIREEY 1ETHREAEBRESFIE  B2E
HEENF2,000E86,000F 75 K TE - 852 FiE2E
S E T A50,000F 5K OSRIE AW E M A& B
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T-Z—HM1IE8HEEEN2014F THEFET 78
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TEHEE . —HRssIE E AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

In addition, Beihai Industrial Park has also been actively
exploring various producer services operation model
and soft environment for industrial development in the
park, and has stepped up the efforts to develop the
business of high-tech entrepreneurial services centre, and
has integrated social resources in all aspects to create
a technology service platform and an entrepreneurial
incubation platform for technology enterprises. During the
year, a number of enterprises were introduced to operate in
the incubation base of the park.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, loss attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to HK$6.1 million,
compared to a profit of HK$118.5 million for 2013. The
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 included a one-off gain of
HK$120.0 million arising from the disposal of 50% equity
interest in a joint venture, Guangxi CEC Future Investment
Land Co., Ltd.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, bank and
other borrowings, and issuance of corporate bonds. At 31
December 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$534.1 million, 98.8% of which were
denominated in Renminbi, 0.8% in United States dollars
and 0.4% in Hong Kong dollars (2013: HK$791.8 million,
99.1% of which was denominated in Renminbi, 0.4% in
United States dollars and 0.5% in Hong Kong dollars).

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total bank and
other borrowings of HK$1,332.5 million, all of which
were denominated in Renminbi (2013: HK$508.5 million,
all of which were denominated in Renminbi). Among
these borrowings, (i) HK$65.9 million (2013: HK$157.7
million) were secured by non-current assets of the Group,
HK$1,266.5 million (2013: nil) were secured by short-
term deposits of the Group, and HK$0.1 million were
unsecured (2013: HK$350.8 million were unsecured and
guaranteed by CEC for the Group), and (i) HK$1,266.5
million and HK$66.0 million (2013: HK$442.5 million and
HK$66.0 million respectively) were borrowed at fixed and
variable interest rates respectively. At 31 December 2014,
committed borrowing facilities available to the Group but
not drawn amounted to HK$937.9 million.
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On 16 January 2014, the Company issued a 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750 million (the “Bonds”). The issue price of the
Bonds is 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds and
will mature on 16 January 2017. The Bonds bear interest
at the rate of 4.70% per annum and are listed on the
Stock Exchange. CEC assists the Company in meeting its
obligations under the Bonds by entering into a keepwell
deed and a deed of equity interest purchase undertaking.
Pursuant to the keepwell deed, CEC, as the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, undertakes to,
inter alia, directly or indirectly own and hold more than
50% of the outstanding shares of the Company.

On 25 September 2014, 338,312,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were placed at a price of HK$1.63
per share to independent third parties. The net proceeds of
the placing, after the deduction of the placing commission
and other related expenses, amounted to HK$536.3
million.

The Group's revenue are mainly denominated in Renminbi
and payments are denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. The Group will make use of hedging
contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign
exchange fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of
HK$4,317.0 million (2013: HK$629.3 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
the total assets of the Group, was 83.6% (2013: 53.8%).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

China Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd
(“CEC Technology”)

In June 2014, the Company had completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interests of CEC Technology for
a cash consideration of RMB600 million (equivalent
to HK$755,905,000). CEC Technology becomes a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The principal
activities of CEC Technology and its subsidiaries are the
development and management of electronic information
technology industrial parks.

R2014F 11680 AR AIBITAL BT A ARE
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2014, certain assets of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$1,464.7 million
(2013: HK$184.2 million) were pledged as collateral for
borrowings obtained by its subsidiaries.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2013: HK$763.1
million) for the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible
assets. The Group did not have any material contingent
liability at 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 480
employees, the majority of whom were based in the PRC.
Employee benefit expenses for the year were HK$200.5
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonuses and other merit payments
are linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance.

BEERHA
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The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate
governance practices by emphasising its accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The
Company is dedicated to exercise corporate governance
through regular reviews of its adopted practices with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2014. The following summarises the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2014, the board of directors (the
"Board”) of the Company consists of three executive
directors, one non-executive director and two independent
non-executive directors. The roles of the chairman of
the Board are segregated from the managing director.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for leading
and overseeing the functioning of the Board and the
strategic development of the Group. The managing
director is delegated with the authority and responsible for
managing the Group’s business, and the implementation
of the Group’s strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. The position of the chairman of the Board
and the managing director are held separately by Mr. Rui
Xiaowu and Mr. Xie Qinghua, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and
accountability. There are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among the directors (including
the chairman of the Board and the managing director).

ARRBNEBEGZESKFHNEEERTER LH
EEME BH B BEEMAFHE ARQF
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All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of the
directors are determined with reference to their duties,
responsibilities, and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation of
business objectives are delegated to the managing director.
The management is delegated with proper authority to
carry out daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to directors, and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors to
fill casual vacancies of the Board. The Board will consider
whether the candidate’s skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives (including but is not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience to achieve the diversity of members of the
Board) meet the requirements of the Company when
considering a nomination. In 2014, a Board meeting was
held to consider the appointment of Mr. Chow Chan
Lum as an independent non-executive director of the
Company. When considering Mr. Chow's nomination and
appointment, the Board has applied the above mentioned
criteria and procedures.

Corporate Governance Report
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All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board meets
regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between scheduled
meetings, the senior management of the Group provides
information to directors on a regular basis regarding
the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expense. With respect
to regular meetings of the Board, the directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in
advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than 3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and
practicable in the circumstances. If a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting. Independent
non-executive directors who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction should be present
at that Board meeting. All minutes of Board and Board
committee meetings are kept by the company secretary
of the Company to record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board
committee, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views expressed by any director. These minutes are available
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any director. The attendance record of the directors
at the general meeting(s), Board and Board committee
meetings held in 2014 are set out on page 27 of the
annual report. Besides providing sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group, all directors have
disclosed to the Company the number and nature of the
offices held in other public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments, and updated the
Company on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the directors from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.
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The directors acknowledge the need to continue to EERATERBERRITFN A S MR
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for ARARRRMEHBER - TRBIIZESZN20145

making contributions to the Company. The participation RBEVEELMRARES AC BREEBEZ
by individual directors in the continuous professional HEZXRRAS 20T H-

development programme with appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in 2014 is recorded in the table below.

Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/

updates  programmes
BE SHEPR
EERE BN
EHER g EH

Non-executive director FHTES

Rui Xiaowu PRz v/ v
Executive directors HITES

Liu Hongzhou 214TM v v
Xie Qinghua B EE v

Liu Jinping 2|1ET v

Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES

Chan Kay Cheung PRAE & 4 4
Qiu Hongsheng B4 v v/
Yin Yongli* FK A * v

* Resigned in May 2014 * R2014%5 A BFE

The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 29 to EEBRENFTHRFE298FF31H -

31 of the annual report.

TEETFEEZERERAR 20145 FH 19

.a‘:.;-'__.



20

Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

The remuneration and nomination committee comprises
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, and an
executive director Mr. Xie Qinghua. Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
is the chairman of the remuneration and nomination
committee. The terms of reference of the remuneration and
nomination committee, which described its authority and
duties, is available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy
and the remuneration of the directors and the senior
management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors, responsible for identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to appointment or re-appointment of
directors, succession planning for directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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Pursuant to the revised terms of reference of the
remuneration and nomination committee, in making
recommendations to the Board in respect of the
composition of the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of directors, the remuneration and
nomination committee should give adequate consideration,
including but is not limited to, the followings:

i) members of the Board have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group's business;

ii) the Board includes a balanced composition of
directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement;

iii) having taking into account of the Group’s own
business model and specific needs, through
consideration of a number of factors, including
but is not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience
to achieve the diversity of members of the Board;
and

iv) the appointment of new directors follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held three meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are set out
on page 27 of the annual report. The work performed by
the remuneration and nomination committee during the
year included reviewing the remuneration policy and the
remuneration of the directors and the senior management,
determining the remuneration of the executive directors,
reviewing the policy for the nomination of directors,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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Remuneration payable to senior management (excluding
directors) for the year ended 31 December 2014 is within
the HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 band. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out on pages 102 to 104 of the
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and
Mr. Qiu Hongsheng. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung is the chairman
of the audit committee. The members have extensive
experience in financial matters. The terms of reference of
the audit committee, which described its authority and
duties, is available on the Company’s website.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and examines the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and
ensuring the external auditor are independent and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The audit committee
examines all matters relating to the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial reporting.
External auditor and the directors are invited to attend the
committee meetings as and when necessary. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out on page 27 of the annual report.
The work performed by the audit committee during the
year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013, the unaudited consolidated interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2014 and the effectiveness of the internal control practices
of the Group. The audit committee has also reviewed
the audit plan and approach of the external auditor and
monitored the progress and results of the audit regularly.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees payable
to the Company’s external auditor in respect of audit

Corporate Governance Report
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and non-audit services provided to the Company and its ZEEEROEREHINAT
subsidiaries is set out below:
2014
20144
HK$'000
FHET
Audit services EIZHRTS 2,760
Non-audit services (included tax matters, EBEZRE (BEHEEE BHE
review and other reporting services) H R ARTS ) 1,499
4,259
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEMERZ

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 47 to 49 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has (a) reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and compliance and risk management functions, (b)
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and (c) held discussion with the Group's external auditor, to
ensure that a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with the
agreed procedures and standards.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the Board
or the company secretary of the Company to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such special general meeting shall be held within two
months from the date of deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
these shareholders. The written requisition will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the written requisition has been verified as not
in order, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any special general meeting so convened shall
be held within three months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the registered shareholders concerned in
accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all the registered shareholders must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention
of the company secretary of the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution; and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition; and where
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the

Corporate Governance Report

SREARE

BRERRRAELREBRZERF

RBEABREZ1GIFAEE(KERT) HEE#E
EARRBIRRAREREZARBEHRAT DR
T2 G ERKRE KT DR100% E
EERE - AMAQRRRIEMENX: QRAEREE
BXT—ERERSBEZRRBELHBAN  UE
MAZARE HEM A REERB S LT 2 RE
H RbRBEESEXRTARERGRE ZKRE
EHTEBET,000F 2Rl E  LENRZAE
REZAZRMMEEXGEEZEHE-

ERZRERBTFAERRAXREBERANAIZINAR
ARBZEZEREERTETRAMBELTLRRE LA
EEBALEHNEBERRREI ZRAEFRN
EEZHAIMARERANAFMEEER it A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda * FEBAZARNQ A] A A1 & RN - a0 @ A
BENABRBAZIEN ZERARGHRIT
AT DRNIERE WEREREMER  BIZAR
ERBTAAPR—ERE WA REREED
RERBAERENAIREHEAAZE—BE
FARRBEFAEG BZERKBEREERERFHEA
KE - BRUMETBEERREEZLSIERE

EMERVAKARECLERREZ A AN
RAERARME-— BN —BEEAREREZ
XK - EMEBRBHRBBRMNBLEELE  H
BMERBENTERFE ARABIRAWMERE
KEZERERRBRMABRRA G ZHERE A
RIBEEREERERAMBEECHRELRER

FEEFEEZERERAT 2014FF3)

25



26

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

statutory and regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the written requisition has
been verified as not in order, the shareholders concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting wishes to propose a person other than a director
of the Company for election as a director at the general
meeting must validly serve (1) his/her written notice of
intention to propose a candidate for election as a director
at the general meeting; (2) a written notice signed by the
nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to
be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent
to the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the
Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS eEHELE
Details of the director’s attendance at general meetings, TERINSEFR204FALERRIRAE ES
Board and Board committee meetings held in 2014 are set ERESFZEGEGRLHE:
out in the table below:
Meetings attended/held
HERE &ERE
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee MK General
Note Board** X RA meetings
Hrzz EEge £ZE%g £ZE® RERE
Non-executive director FHTES
Rui Xiaowu REER 5/6* 22*
Executive directors BTEE
Liu Hongzhou 24N 5/5 12
Xie Qinghua SEE 5/5 13 22
Liu Jinping s 05 012
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Chan Kay Cheung BREE 6/6 22* 33 22
Qiu Hongsheng ilpida 6/6 212 3/3* 212
Yin Yongli FoKM 1 1/6 12 23 212
* Chairman * EY3
*% Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board * AP — R EFC DB EHEFS L BEREHTT

met with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors and
management present.

Note:

1. Resigned in May 2014
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LISTING RULES COMPLIANCE

Following the resignation of Mr. Yin Yongli on 24 May
2014, the number of (i) independent non-executive
director of the Company, (ii) independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise
(the “Appropriate Expertise”), (iii) the audit committee
member and (iv) the audit committee member whom is
an independent non-executive director with Appropriate
Expertise fell below the minimum number required under
the Listing Rules.

On 20 August 2014, the Board resolved to propose that
Mr. Chow Chan Lum be appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company, a member of
the remuneration and nomination committee of the
Board, and a member of the audit committee of the
Board. An ordinary resolution to consider and approve
the appointment of Mr. Chow as an independent non-
executive director of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Upon the appointment of Mr. Chow taking effect, the
Company will comply with the relevant requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rui Xiaowu, aged 55, is the Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Rui graduated from the National University
of Defense Technology in 1982 with a major in Computer
Software, was a Master's postgraduate and a Research
Fellow, and was awarded the “Government Special
Allowance” by the State Council of the PRC. Mr. Rui is
the chairman of China Electronics Corporation Limited
("CEC"), the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Rui was previously the director of the
710 Research Institute of the Ministry of Aerospace
Industry of China, the general manager of China Satellite
Communications Corporation and the deputy general
manager of China Aerospace Science & Technology
Corporation. Mr. Rui was also the chairman of China
Spacesat Company Limited (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman of Beijing Navinfo
Science and Technology Company Limited (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), the chairman,
president and an executive director of China Aerospace
International Holdings Limited, the chairman and a non-
executive director of APT Satellite Holdings Limited. Mr. Rui
joined the Company in August 2011.

Mr. Dong Haoran, aged 50. Mr. Dong graduated
from Tsinghua University with a bachelor degree in
semiconductor device and physics, and is a professor level
senior engineer. Mr. Dong is the general manager of Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd (“Huada Semiconductor”), a fellow
subsidiary and a controlling shareholder of the Company,
the chairman of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit
Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Huada Semiconductor, and an
executive director and the general manager of CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Dong joined Huada
Electronics (formerly known as China Huada Integrated
Circuit Design Center) in 1988 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the integrated circuit design
industry. Mr. Dong joined the Company in February 2015.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAERHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 52, is the Vice Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds a
postgraduate degree in Business and Administration, and
is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much of his
career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director of the Asset
Management Department of CEC, an executive director
and the deputy general manager of Winfair Development
Limited, a divisional director of the Investment Banking
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager of
China Electronics Technology Development Corporation,
the deputy general manager of the Asset Management
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager of the
Company, a director of the General Office of CEC, a
director of Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and the managing
director of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Company Ltd.
Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in October
2013.

Mr. Xie Qinghua, aged 47, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Xie graduated from the School
of Economics and Management of Beijing Institute of
Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in Business
Administration. Mr. Xie is the chairman of China Electronics
Technology Development Co., Ltd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xie was in charge of the
Overseas Cooperation Department of CEC, the general
manager of the Strategic Planning Department of China
Great Wall Computer (Group) Corporation, the assistant
general manager and the secretary to the board of
directors of Great Wall Broadband Network Service Co.,
Ltd, the general manager of Beijing Branch of Great Wall
Broadband Network Service Co., Ltd, the general manager
of Shenzhen Great Wall Broadband Network Service
Co., Ltd, the assistant general manager of Aerostrong
Technology Co., Ltd, and in charge of the general manager
office and the project manager of the Communication
Network Department of Jitong Communications Limited.
Mr. Xie joined the Company in August 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 68. Mr. Chan is a senior
advisor of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman
of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman
of Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan
was an executive director and the deputy chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The
Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a member of the Process Review Committee for
the oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals Tribunal,
a member of the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing
College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member
of The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and
an international senior economic consultant of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Chu Kong Shipping
Enterprises (Group) Company Limited, Dah Chong Hong
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings
Limited and SOCAM Development Limited. Mr. Chan was
appointed director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 50. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in
Management Science and Engineering; and is a Certified
Public Valuer in the PRC, a Certified Senior Enterprise Risk
Manager in the PRC and a senior economist. Mr. Qiu is
an executive director and the general manager of China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd.
Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry
of Aerospace Industry of China as an economic analyst
for a number of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd (formerly
known as China Financial and Accounting Consulting
Company), a company directly managed by the State
Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and focuses on
management consulting and corporation restructuring
transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth of professional
knowledge and practical experiences on corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also an independent director
of Lingyun Industrial Corporation Limited, Beijing Tiantan
Biological Products Co., Ltd, China National Software &
Service Co., Ltd, and AVIC Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd (all
being companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
Mr. Qiu was appointed director of the Company in
November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAEHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 53, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "“Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuits chips, and the development and
management of electronic information technology
industrial parks. The activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 19 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 50 of the annual
report.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014
of HK2.6 cents per share (2013: HK3.0 cents), amounting
to a total dividend of HK$52,777,000, is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 55 of the annual
report and Note 28 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2014
amounted to HK$404,799,000 (2013: HK$439,038,000).

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
143 to 144 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Rui Xiaowu (Chairman)
Dong Haoran
(appointed on 12 February 2015)

Executive Directors
Liu Hongzhou (Vice Chairman)
Xie Qinghua (Managing Director)
Liu Jinping

(resigned on 12 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung
Qiu Hongsheng
Yin Yongli
(resigned on 24 May 2014)

Mr. Dong Haoran was appointed as director by the board
of directors on 12 February 2015. Pursuant to bye-law
86(2) of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Dong will hold
office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Xie Qinghua
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2014, none of the directors nor the
chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 30 December 2014, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co.,
Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and CS&S Information System Engineering
Co., Ltd ("CS Info"), entered into a construction
agreement (“Construction Agreement”) to appoint CS
Info as the contractor of the weak current engineering
work for RMB17,540,000. The weak current engineering
work, includes but is not limited to the construction and
installation of the building control system, monitoring
and security system and telecommunication network of a
property for Huada Electronics’ operation in the PRC. CEC
is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. CS Info,
being a subsidiary of CEC, is also a connected person
of the Company. The transaction contemplated under
the Construction Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. Details of the Construction
Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements also fall under the
definition of “continuing connected transactions” within
the meaning of the Listing Rules.

(1)  Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are summarised

REXS
20145128308 ' AR a2z 2 EMB AR R
PEERETRIAREARA ([EXRETF])HE
FREBRAIRERAR ([FEEE])FILE
Ripm ([ERBHE])  UEREPREBIEADE
TiEzABE BAR/ARM17,540,0007T°55%
TERBEETRRAERESTRBEANELEERS
COERERTEEFEERA BEARRET R
BREAMBRE - FRAETERBALARRZ KK
R A AARRRIZHEBEALT -FREZEHER
PHREFEECHBAR MAKRQT ZB@EA
T - ERBEBEITRETZIRIBRARAZ —
HEEX S ERMBBENFBHR AT R2014
F12A30B B 2 AER-

RERERS
1R EMRRIMER A B B RR M E36F R
MEBALTRZNBRFERERS -

(1) BTZEXZAEAETLETRBNEBEREF
EERMMRE AREFEHANT:

as follows:
Amount
&8
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction XBEH H et FAT
Sale of products to the CEC Group MABEETFEBEKERFIHE i, i 172,652
=
Purchase of raw materials and modules from the MAHEFEBERE QAFRE i i 471,949
CEC Group, provision of products processing, EMERESR RPRETE
testing and assembling services by the BB ARREERMT
CEC Group AV WS ESEY
Interest received from the CEC Group AP EEFEEKE QKR 4,124

B
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group"), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement and to facilitate the
Group's production and operation upon the expiration of
the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement on 30 June
2013, the Company entered into the 2013-2016 Business
Services Agreement with CEC to reflect the terms of the
proposed continuing connected transactions and the caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the 2013-
2016 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and modules
from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC Group.

The 2013-2016 Business Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 20 June
2013, details of which are set out in the circular dated 28 May
2013.

Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and smart
cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC Group
are for the Group's research and development of integrated
circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also
provides products processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group.

(ii)

(iif)
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51372013-201645 & AR 15 17 5% - LARRE 201347
A1B#ZE201656 8308 IF M 2 @i B E
R LAREETRZS LR -BH2013-20164624
Rt PREFEBKE QG RAEEREMH
EmNI KeRlaRFERSE mMAEE RSP
B E FERERK B QA B R MR AR 4R K[ E
BETEEKERRHEESER-

2013-201645 & IR i R B ERE BB AR
AB AR 2013496 A20H 2217 M AR B AF Al K
g e BRIBEEHMN BEA2013F5H28H
2B o

RREETREREARHEERRERKEYS
TREgERRENS S -

AP B EFREKE R RRE 2RI RRET

HAEEMBERERR B RS 2P

BETFREXEARITAANEEEH‘RERNT
Cam B R AR A
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On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Financial Services Agreement, and to facilitate the Group’s
operation upon the expiration of the Financial Services
Agreement on 30 June 2013, the Company entered into
the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement with China
Electronics Financial Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance”), a subsidiary
of CEC to reflect the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and the caps of the transactions
thereunder for the period commencing from 1 July 2013
to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial
Services Agreement, the financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group includes deposit services, financial
assistance and fee-and commission-based financial services.

The 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 20 June 2013, details of which are set out
in the circular dated 28 May 2013.

Pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement,
the maximum daily balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB280 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance
on any given day during the year ended 31 December
2014 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall not
exceed RMB280 million on any given day and no financial
assistance had ever been granted to the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014. For the provision of fee-
and commission-based financial services, the cap for fees
and commissions payable for the fee- and commission-
based financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 is RMB10
million. The fees and commissions paid for the fee- and
commission-based financial service by the Group to CEC
Finance for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to HK$509,000.

M2013F5A78 B THBEREZEIM SRS HHE
THETZHERERS URREAEEEH
RN 2013F6 A30H @EmEHNKLE  AAQ
FREPHETEEZHNBARTEETFYHEAER
EERR ([FEHHK])ETL2013-20162HE B
S1VEHE AR E 820137818 £ E2016%6
A30B Mz EZ#BERERS URHEEAT
X5 FR-1B1E2013-20162HEBA 1EH =

BY BAAEBRE W EREEIETHRY - 8
BEORERFEBRASTERE MR-

2013-20162HEmAEEE LA LREER
AN BB PR FR2013F6 A20H BITH I R EF
RIRE E#E BEEFIBEEHNHEA2013F5 A
28 HH A KA -

R152013-20162EHEME (EHE - AEBFHR
FEUBIERZESBAEHR (BRIEMELEY
FE)THBBARE208E L MALERERE
2014F 12 A31B IEFETAEHT BHRFAEYH
TR BRI R Lt S8 - R IR B 75
BB FEFBERAAEERETKED 2 &S
NI E BB EBBEARE280B& T M
B BREE2014F12A31H IEFEW R GIRME
AP BED TAEE -BARRBIZFEE LA
SR EWE 2 MBRY  BlE2014F12A31H 1E
FERPEMHRMAEERBIZFEE BT
BWEZVBEREZFEERES LRAARE
10BE T -REE2014F12A31H EFEAREE
SR FHEMBIEFEBRASTERBZY
%R 2 FEE RS /509,000 T °
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(2)  Following the completion of the acquisition of 2) MR2014F6 AETREFRIERERFRA
China Electronics Technology Development Co., a ([RER]) TlE  FERRKAERR
Ltd (“CEC Technology”) by the Company in June AZ2EWBAR -HEREERAEMBEAR
2014, CEC Technology became a wholly-owned (THRERMREER])BART ZBEANLTHE
subsidiary of the Company. Certain transactions TETRS  ZEXHRE LTHRBERKAR
between CEC Technology and its subsidiaries (“CEC NAIZHBRER S ZERFBEERSA
Technology Group”) and the connected persons B AR RRFEENRTE A
of the Company became continuing connected BB
transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of these continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules
are summarised as follow:
Amount
k|
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction X5 R Htat FHT
Property management fee paid to the CEC Group MAEEFEE i 1,451
RERRIXNMEERS
Guarantee fee paid to CEC mMPRETEE i, i 265
XHERE
Interest received from the CEC Group mMPBEETFEE 974
IPA= NS EE N
Interest paid to the CEC Group mMPRETEE 4,220
BB AR ANFE
Notes: Bt aF -

(ii)

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 1 February 2013, China Electronics Beihai Industrial Park
Development Co., Ltd (FEIEFILBEXRER AR D
A]) (“CEC Beihai”) and CEC Rida Property Management Co.,
Ltd (bR B =Y EAFR D A) ("CEC Rida”) entered
into a property management agreement (the “Property
Management Agreement”) to govern the continuous
provision of property management services by CEC Rida
to CEC Beihai. The term of the Property Management
Agreement commenced on 1 February 2013 and will expire
on 31 December 2016. Details of the Property Management
Agreement and the related caps are set out in the
announcement dated 7 July 2013.

0

(i)

THEFEREEXSEERAR([FRETFE
B EREMBLAR [PEEFEEXKER
ADARRBZERBRR A RARREZHE
BALe

M2013F2R 18 FARAEFILBEXRERER
AR([RELF]) B TP ERENEBRA
A(THREmEDTIMEER R ([MEEE
WiEl)  UREFRERERERNTEILEFRED
XEERMG MEEEHEBRBE2013F2818
FZE2016F12A318 AL - MEETIE Wz KA
R e ERFIBEHN A R2013F7A7A 22 E
ﬁqo

hEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFRH
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(iii) On 5 July 2013, CEC Technology and CEC entered into
a guarantee arrangements agreement (the “Guarantee
Arrangements Agreement”) to govern the continuous
provision of guarantees by CEC in respect of certain financial
assistance for CEC Technology Group. The term of the
Guarantee Arrangements Agreement commenced on 5
July 2013 and will expire on 30 June 2016. Details of the
Guarantee Arrangements Agreement and the related caps are
set out in the announcement dated 7 July 2013.

On 5 July 2013, CEC Technology entered into the CEC
Technology Financial Services Agreement with CEC Finance
to reflect the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and the caps of the transactions thereunder
for the period commencing from 5 July 2013 to 30 June
2016. Pursuant to the CEC Technology Financial Services
Agreement, the financial services provided by CEC Finance
to the CEC Technology Group includes deposit services,
financial assistance and fee-and commission-based financial
services.

The CEC Technology Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 11 October 2013, details of which are set
out in the circular dated 28 August 2013.

Pursuant to the CEC Technology Financial Services
Agreement, the maximum daily balance of deposits
(together with the interests accrued thereon) maintained
by the CEC Technology Group with CEC Finance shall not
exceed RMB400 million and the CEC Technology Group’s
actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance on any given
day during the period from 26 June 2014 to 31 December
2014 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the CEC Technology
Group shall not exceed RMB400 million on any given
day and the CEC Technology Group's actual balance of
financial assistance provided by CEC Finance on any given
day during the period from 26 June 2014 to 31 December
2014 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision of
fee- and commission-based financial services, the cap for
fees and commissions payable for the fee- and commission-
based financial services provided by CEC Finance to the
CEC Technology Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 is RMB750,000. The fees and commissions paid for
the fee- and commission-based financial service by the
CEC Technology Group to CEC Finance during the period
from 26 June 2014 to 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$53,000.

(iii) 201367 A58 R ERLEAFEEFE B E
Rtz ([EREHERZE]) UREFHETFE
BT ERRER2E THBEADSERBER.
ERZHEMZEREH2013F7 A58 £ E2016F6A
30E|7%¢ BREZHH® &*ﬁﬁ%;%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%a%ﬁ

RBBEAE2013F7A7THZAER

R2013F7A5H HFERFHAEP KT LR E
BMiE2EeBEERHZE UHREB2013F7A5
BEZE2016F6A30H Itz BEFEBER
S UREBBTRGER - BREFERE2EESE
G PEVBRFPERZEBRRE VB
REBRETRRS VEEDRERFEEBRAES
AEWE RS-

EP SRR ESRA ERE A EREESA

NEBAEER2013F10 811 B ITHRE R
Ae HibE BEFBEHNBHA2013F8A28
H #)38 K A o

BREFEREZ2ESRAERE EP 5 R EE
GHRRAPEMB s ER &S RES (BFEAM
FiZ%IJéwtﬂ/\EMztooa%ﬁ s ER
RE®EMP2014F6 826 E2014F12 A31 H Hi
EAFTEERARPEYBEROEEBEL KB
It EEE - RN RIS A B hEE R ER
REBIREMIBED o BRNIAEE B
TBiBARBLI00HE T ﬁﬁﬂfﬂé&iaﬂ%ﬁézo14¢6
FA26HE2014%12 A31 B HE s E B 4R
FHERBEENT B EMERGEL RBH I
FE-ARRHEEFEERASHERBZUH
RS #E2014F 12831 B L FERBBH KM
PEREEERERFEELRAETEREZY
RSz FEERMAE LR ABARET750,0005T
RERBEEBRR2014F6 A26H £2014412 531
HEESANFHREMBZ2IZFEERASTENR
BYKRE 2 FEE XML A53,0008 T
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions. The above continuing connected transactions
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
above continuing connected transactions were carried out
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor has
confirmed in its letter to the board of directors that:

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded their
respective maximum aggregate annual value as
disclosed in the previous announcements.
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R EAFERERIZGME  ARAERDET L
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. I EF BB ERNFBRSMMABEZS
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RZEMBERTEABRBREZER
SRR ET &

. I BE BB T FES M MEEZSE
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of

EERNBRFXRB RS

REZABRBEARRE B I AR SRR
575 BN 48 B 45 o D43 18 G 6 8 o AR
B2 T

42

the Group:
Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EERNEHER
EspnE BERESE BERECTEXK ZHERME
Rui Xiaowu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman
B REEFEER (M) REZR BEER
Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Investment holdings General manager
BEN ("Huada Semiconductor”) HEER FER g
(Note 1)
EAYERAR LA
(TERFER])
(HtzE1)
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Design of integrated circuits Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd (Note 2) EREEES BER
FBETESKNEREREERT]
(Htzt2)
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
2EF Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) REER s
PREEREXNERER;EE
BRAR (Hat2)
Nationz Technologies Inc (Note 2) Design of integrated circuits Chairman
BR KM AR BRDE (Hat2) SR ERRFET EER
Notes: W

@)

@

CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. Huada Semiconductor is a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Both CEC and Huada
Semiconductor have subsidiaries or associates engaging in
integrated circuits related businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group. CEC has subsidiaries or associates engaging in
the development and management of electronic information
technology industrial parks related businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

(1) FPEEFEE/ARFRZKEERRR-PHE
FEERFUEFEFREMMRITEZZ2EE
BELEER FAYERIARNFZEBERE -
TREEFEEMEAFERZMBARIBZR
AARFEAREXGER N ERBKBF X
ARERAHF SN ERABER -PEETE
B BARREERRHENERAEEEY
BERAREEBRRF AR RF 2ETFELS
RTEXEzERIERBAES-

2) S RARLEMBARXBE ARG AREER
SEXBEERNEXBRBFRAEBRETZ
KRERBBAES-
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The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The board of directors of the Company
exercises independent judgment and is always acting for
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2014, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the director or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company that
they had an interest of 5% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company:
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Pz BEREBHRBIEREMTHRABRLE
RER -ARAREZSITRBLHAE RALRE
REBRRZBEAZTE Fit AEEFURRA
FEENBYUN EARFER 2T ALERG X
% o

BREAHRBER ZKRR

2014512 A318 - RIBEFZ S L E K G £336
EARNBBEBEEzEZMAI R THAL (AR
AEEAGERTRABRINENE ARG RS
BEARRRBBITIRAS%E N £ 2R

Number or
attributable
number of
shares
interested Percentage
BESEN of shareholding
Name of interested party FERaEER ROEE ERESHK
China Electronics Corporation China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited ("CEC (BVI)") Limited ([CEC (BVI)])
China Integrated Circuit Design PREREKERKTEE 393,680,000 19.39%
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada") BRAB ([FREKX])
Senrigan Master Fund Senrigan Master Fund 160,734,000 7.92%
Huada Semiconductor (Note?) ERYER (M) 812,500,000 40.03%
CEC (Notes 1 and 2) REEFEE (HE1k2) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
Notes: Kt

(1) CEC holds 100% equity interest in each of CEC (BVI) and
Huada Semiconductor. CEC has assigned the voting rights
attached to the 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI) to Huada
Semiconductor. Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor
is deemed to be interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the
Company held by CEC (BVI).

1 FEREFEEBFEACEC BV)REAFEE
100% % 2 7 25 © R B & F 5 B #§ H A CEC (BVI)
FT5 2 100% M A2 bl i 2 IR E i F s 4 2
RNEGE-BIBZFHFRAEGRN ERXLEERE
R BFHB CEC BVNATHA 2 A2 71812,500,000%
{1 2 He o

hEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFRH
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(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in each of China Huada and
Huada Semiconductor and is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by China Huada and Huada
Semiconductor. The directors regard CEC, a state-owned
enterprise established under the laws of the PRC, as being the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

According to the terms and conditions of the 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750 million, CEC, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, is required to directly or indirectly own and hold
more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Company.
Such bond will mature in January 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Except for the placing of new shares by the Company
in September 2014, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the Company's
shares and the Company had not redeemed any of its
shares during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Q) FEETFREFETEEAREARFERZ100%
Bt AU RARSFEETREARENFE
BABEZARRABRN S - EEEHTEE
TERE(REFBEZERNIZBEERLE) RARQ
Bl Z SR IRAR A A

FELAMBEZREY/ARRRNDZHER -

B EXCHTREESN 2014128318 AR A
KEMSHITMEMALTEERDFRD KA
R BRENRBIBEES KB EKRIIFE3I36KEE
FrERMRAz SRR -

ERRR 2EHBITEME

RBEARSEAARB27 5870220176 5| i K
HAT0%BEHZIER RGN FRETFEE (AR
FIHERIRR ) A E R SRR R X F AR R FS50%
A £z B BITRD - ZIEFHKR201761 A 215 -

BrRBERE

ARBIZ2 AR ERARSBREZRIEGHE
SBER X

BE- -HEIHEEES

B AR BIR2014F9BBEFBHIN RE R
2014F 128318 IEFE R NA R s EH (K E

7 4 B o] B AT fRT AL
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 57% of the Group’s sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for 13% of the Group's sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 86% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 43% of the Group’s purchases for
the year.

CEC Group is not a beneficial owner of any of the five
largest customers and is the beneficial owner of two of the
five largest suppliers of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital are held by the public
and fulfills the requirement under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

TEEFRHES

HE2014F12A3MBIFE AEEEREAEF
CREEREAEBAFEHEERI57%  MA
EERARFPZHERNASERNFEHER 2
13% - E Z20145F12A31B LtFE - AEEE R
AMEBZBARBEEAEBRAFTFERER
86% MASBEHEAHER s KEBEAEER
FERBEZ43% o

TEHEFREXERAYIFAREEAATFHN
BEEBEAANRAEEERRHER 2 HP WAL
MEDERA-

REXHBEEN BEEE REZTENBEA
SEMER (BESAAFTEARRDHETERAE
5%ALE)REAEBERAATEPMHER ZE
A ok

NEERE

RARER  BLAHRHAR R Z 2ARER ERAR
RESEMA ARADHTRAEEEL A%
HARALTRELNE EWHRAZERK-

BEREEE

EZEZESEENAEEEE2014F12A318 1k
FENEEZGAMBRE -

hEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFRH

45



46

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 142, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 March 2015

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

mealmR
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiora FE&x FET
(Restated)
(&E73)

Revenue A 5 1,357,062 1,321,606
Cost of sales SHENK A 7 (773,767) (728,677)
Gross profit EF 583,295 592,929
Other income and gains — net HMUA Rz — 558 6 165,274 184,993
Selling and marketing costs $HE K T 35 HE K AR 7 (106,078) (64,344)
Administrative expenses THHAX 7 (293,997) (366,320)
Operating profit LR A 348,494 347,258
Finance income BB WA 10 55,505 9,613
Finance costs RPN 10 (205,723) (24,991)
Finance costs — net BB A —F 5 10 (150,218) (15,378)
Share of result of an associate i i )i /NI 18,840 16,836
Share of result of a joint venture BiE—EA & RREE (942) (853)
Profit before taxation KRB A% R 216,174 347,863
Taxation e 11 (49,135) (58,381)
Profit for the year N F R A 167,039 289,482
Profit for the year attributable EEEBREER:

to:

Owners of the Company RAEIE=FEE 170,108 291,966

Non-controlling interests FEIERR (3,069) (2,484)

167,039 289,482
Dividends BRE 13 52,777 101,494
HK cents HK cents
AL B

Basic earnings per share BREXREF 14 9.55 17.26

50  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZTEHWAER
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLFE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
(Restated)
(E7)
Profit for the year REERR 167,039 289,482
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEEKE:
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified to A REE D EH K
profit or loss: BENIEER
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINETEH
foreign operations fEHZR (6,656) 26,189
Translation reserve of two PRC established GEING I avard )=
subsidiaries reclassified to profit or loss on NAEIZE R A
liquidation RERHENERZE
i ) X B 18 - (8,823)
(6,656) 17,366
Total comprehensive income for AEEETEHWSAHE
the year 160,383 306,848
Total comprehensive income for rEEETEHWEAHE
the year attributable to: EERN:
Owners of the Company RARIERFAEE 163,452 309,332
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (3,069) (2,484)
160,383 306,848

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH



Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREEERER

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
20145%12A31H 2013%F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ERN ] 15 414,630 42,193
Investment properties KREM= 16 409,401 391,965
Land use rights held for self-use B Rz HiE A 17 15,973 1,641
Intangible assets B EE 18 8,453 4,854
Investment in an associate R—EBEQRRE 20 55,508 36,708
Investment in a joint venture R—EeERFIRE 21 21,338 22,359
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R H MU FKIE 24 507,054 77,042
Deferred tax assets EERRIBE E 11 60,173 82,143
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 22 2,535 2,544
1,495,065 661,449
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 23 454,505 381,237
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H USRI 24 849,945 764,538
Taxation recoverable AR A IR 19,522 24,023
Available-for-sale financial assets AT EEMmEE 22 114,087 —
Short-term deposits and investments %2 BiF A I8 & 25 3,259,010 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 26 534,134 791,781
5,231,203 1,961,579
Total assets EEH#E 6,726,268 2,623,028
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

M AL =
meEEERER
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A318 2013412H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g FExT FET
(Restated)
(E73)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzRkEE
Equity attributable to owners KARERTEERN
of the Company xS
Share capital and premium IR 7N F2 o (B 27 825,454 289,171
Reserves G (642,131) 171,177
Retained earnings 1R B8 Y4 Fl 893,652 723,544
1,076,975 1,183,892
Non-controlling interests FEERER 24,855 27,924
Total equity A 1,101,830 1,211,816
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Unsecured corporate bonds EERLEES 29 3,436,724 —
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 32 1,266,418 66,138
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIBEE 11 7,094 12,801
4,710,236 78,939
Current liabilities REBEE
Deferred government grants 3R ST T 6 B 30 137,742 181,342
Advances from customers HPETENFIE 17,804 39,293
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e 5K IE 37 600,980 570,025
Bank and other borrowings BT REMEER 32 66,044 442,409
Income tax payable JE 1~ PR A5 B 3R 18 91,632 99,204
914,202 1,332,273
Total liabilities BEERE 5,624,438 1,411,212
Total equity and liabilities EaKkaEEE 6,726,268 2,623,028
Net current assets RBEEFRE 4,317,001 629,306
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREAG 5,812,066 1,290,755

The financial statements on pages 50 to 142 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 13 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Rui Xiaowu & B &
Director %

HNFSOEEFINBEZHBERRLEEZTS R
20153 A13B#H/ERIZETIZE W T ALR

REE:

Xie Qinghua HE &
Director &%

FEETFREZEREREAT 2014FF3])

53



54

Balance Sheet

EERER

31 December

31 December

2014 2013
20145128318 2013%F12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
oka FExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ERN ] 15 1,157 914
Investments in subsidiaries WEARRE 19 1,309,185 553,280
1,310,342 554,194
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i fE W FRIB 24 1,415,863 83,559
Short-term deposits and investments %2 SiF A R I& & 25 1,887,870 -
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEBY 26 153,493 103,582
3,457,226 187,141
Total assets EERE 4,767,568 741,335
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERkEE
Equity s
Share capital and premium AR K 5 (B 27 825,454 289,171
Reserves L] 28 341,368 396,391
Retained earnings 1R B8 % Fl 59,155 42,647
Total equity e MR 1,225,977 728,209
Liabilities a&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Unsecured corporate bonds mEHEEES 29 3,436,724 —
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H e IR 37 84,965 5,468
Income tax payable B ET SR SRR 19,902 7,658
104,867 13,126
Total liabilities BEEAE 3,541,591 13,126
Total equity and liabilities Bk aEEEE 4,767,568 741,335
Net current assets RBEEFE 3,352,359 174,015
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERREBAG 4,662,701 728,209

The financial statements on pages 50 to 142 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 13 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

REBEE:

Rui Xiaowu P EE &

Director %

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREREHEEE
Retained
earnings/ Non-
(accumulated controlling
Share Share Surplus  Translation Merger Other losses) interests Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  REEF/ Total FER equity
BE  ROEE  BRHRE  EXRE  ANRE  RbRe  (RiER) #g B ERgE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FAT FAT FHL FHL FHL FAT FAT FAT
(Note 27) (Note 27) (Note (3)) (Note (b))
(iz7)  (WE27)  (Kie) (Hittb)
At 1 January 2013, W201351A18
as previously reported (MUEFRE) 16916 872,255 16,309 58,897 (327,605) (68,200 237,230 805,802 - 805,802
Merger of China Electronics Technology EREEFHRFEERAR
Development Co., Ltd (*"CEC Technology”) ([HERK]) REKEAR
and its subsidiaries ([HERREE])
("CEC Technology Group") (Note 2) At (i) - - 3355 (54,926) 232,376 26,574 (20,186) 187,193 30,408 217,601
At 1 January 2013, as restated R2013F1 818 (E3) 16,916 872,255 19,664 3,971 (95,229) (41,626) 217,044 992,995 30,408 1,023,403
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - 17,366 - - 291,966 309,332 (2,484) 306,848
Transfer of share premium BRERHEER
to contributed surplus ARG - (600,000) = = - 600,000 = = = =
Elimination of accumulated losses of the Company MHADRRHER - - - - - (214,534) 214534 - - -
Business combination under common control (Note 2)  ERIEHITMERA G (Mi#2) - - - - (67,782) - - (67,782) - (67,782)
Share of movement i reserve of an associate EE-RBELARE D - - - - - 94 - 9% - 94
Payment of special dividend ERERIRE - - - - - (50,747) - (50,747) - (50,747)
At 31 December 2013, as restated R2013512A318 (E31) 16,916 272,255 19,664 21337 (163,011) 293,187 723,544 1,183,892 27,924 1,211,816
At 1 January 2014, as restated #2014F1 7818 (E5)) 16,916 272,255 19,664 21,337 (163,011) 293,187 723,544 1,183,892 27,924 1,211,816
Total comprehensive income 2EREEE - - - (6,656) - - 170,108 163,452 (3,069) 160,383
Placing of new shares REARH 3383 532,900 - - - - - 536,283 - 536,283
Business combination under common control (ote 2) KRS THERAH (Hi#2) - - - - (755,905) - - (755,905) - (755,905)
Payment of dividend ERRE - - - - - (50,747) - (50,747) = (50,747)
At 31 December 2014 20145125318 20,299 805,155 19,664 14,681 (918,916) 242,440 893,652 1,076,975 24,855 1,101,830
(a) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (a) IR HE A B BDA G R ARG - R & B R B2 i8R
portion of the profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries has been AN N EEBRECAEIRNCETRES R
transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund EEES ([RSRFEDRA-
(the “surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.

(b) The financial statements of CEC Technology Group for (b) PERREEHZ2013F12A318 L FE 2 B %R

the year ended 31 December 2013 are included using the
principles of merger accounting as prescribed in Hong
Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” (“HKAG 5") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Note
2.1(a)). HK$591,311,000, being the difference between
the total acquisition costs of HK$823,687,000 and the
sum of the 100% of the paid-in capital of CEC Technology
and the 38.96% of the paid-in capital of China Electronics
Xi'an Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd (“CEC Xi'an")
of HK$232,376,000, was made to merger reserve upon
completion of the acquisition of 100% equity interest of CEC
Technology on 26 June 2014.

K DIRARBEHMASEMZEA SRS ES
5% [HERIESI T &Mz & ttests] ([EEFEES
ESSR ) FTRE 2 &M RAIRE (M1:72.1@)) °
201456 H26 8 W EE R BRI 100 % R Az E
TE SEAk 14 - UK BE 485K 7823,687,000/% JT B2 AR B R
100% A Em RHEEFAREXRERABRA
A ([FREFEL] ) 38.96% /% AN 25 4 & 2 B UL A A
232,376,0005% 7T < % ¥8591,311,000/ 7Tt A& 6f
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

> =1
7 \éiﬁﬁlﬁii
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
Htat FET FHT
(Restated)
(E%)
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Cash (used in)/generated from e (A EExzRe
operations 33 (21,800) 362,868
Interest paid A B (130,765) (27,056)
Income tax paid Sl L (40,789) (30,200)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e EE) (Fﬁﬁﬁ ) EEZ
operating activities REFE (193,354) 305,612
Cash flows from investing RETHZRERE
activities
Interest received U B A1) & 124,331 9,613
Purchase of property, plant and BBEYE BB RE&E
equipment, investment properties KREMENEEE
and intangible assets (53,825) (45,546)
Payment for acquisition of property EZHHSZ BYIXEEE
transfer right (312,099) (63,595)
Payment for available-for-sale iﬁ—H HESREE
financial assets | (328,138) -
Proceeds from disposal of S Al ﬁ’% BEE
available-for-sale financial assets FriesE 214,552 -
Proceeds from disposal of 50% equity HER—EA L AR~
interest in a joint venture 50%J‘]x$$ @ P15 508 65,628 -
Increase in short-term deposits and I HFER LIEE
investment (3,259,010) -
Proceeds from government grants XY %8 BY P15 5008 4,872 19,695
Provision of entrusted loan REZTER (507,054) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, — H &% J“n’ﬁb‘% &L
plant and equipment Ffr?%fé’\ - 556
Dividends received UG BY i% 8 12,621 20,051
Net cash used in investing activities & & )EEFTA 2 A& /F58 (4,038,122) (59,226)
Cash flows from financing METHCRERE
activities B
Net proceeds from placing of e & ¥ 10 FT 15 5 IR F R
new shares 536,283 —
Proceeds from bank and RITREMEE
other borrowings FT15 5008 1,456,477 439,999
Repayment of bank and other EIERTT R
borrowings (632,562) (355,135)
Dividend paid X ATRR B (50,747) (50,747)
Payment for business combination SN EB G P 2 KA (755,905) (67,782)
Net proceeds from issuance of BITEERMEES
unsecured corporate bonds FriS kI8 F 58 3,421,244 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) ~ REE EEESL, (FTA)
financing activities 2B e FRE 3,974,790 (33,665)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBREEEY
and cash equivalents (R2) /s (256,686) 212,721
Effect of exchange rate changes EXE o 228 (961) 2,227
Cash and cash equivalents at FUZHRERRAESEED
beginning of the year 791,781 576,833
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEERBREEEY
end of the year 534,134 791,781
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014%12A318H L FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company's
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

On 5 July 2013, the Company entered into an agreement
with CEC for the acquisition of its 100% equity interest
of CEC Technology (the "Acquisition”) for a cash
consideration of Renminbi (“RMB”) 600 million (equivalent
to HK$755,905,000). CEC Technology Group are
primarily engaged in the development and management
of electronic information technology industrial parks.
Completion of the Acquisition took place on 26 June
2014 and CEC Technology has become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company since then.

As a condition precedent to the Acquisition, CEC
Technology entered into agreements with two shareholders
of CEC Xi'an, whom are under common control of CEC, for
the acquisition of their then entire equity interests in CEC
Xi'an totalling 38.96% for a cash consideration of RMB54
million (equivalent to HK$67,782,000). The acquisition
of the 38.96% equity interest in CEC Xi‘an by CEC
Technology was completed in August 2013. As a result,
CEC Technology holds 73.91% equity interest in CEC Xi‘an
and CEC Xi'an has become a subsidiary of CEC Technology
since then.

Following the completion of the Acquisition, the principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) are the design and sale of integrated circuits
chips, and the development and management of electronic
information technology industrial parks.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK dollar”), unless otherwise stated.

1. —RER

FHREFEEIERERAT ([AR2F]) A KR
FEHESFMKY  YRERELBLENHERE
ERR - ARAIRNDEBBHERZFABR AR L
™ o ANA Ry 9% B EE b ik & Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARBIZBEERARATHEETFEREXEH
BRAR (FERETFEE]) (—XRPEARK
B (THRE])RZLZEE)

M2013F 7R850 RAAREFAEEFEE G L
FEUAREREARE ([ARKE])600EBE T (48
& 7755,905,000/8 7T ) Uk B R | R 100% 3% AR
Em ((WEEE]) AEREEEFTERES
FEERNEXEZRERER - WBESEER
2014F6A26HEMN - BELHPERIBEK AR AR Z
EMBAT -

ERWEEIE r —HARGEH PERIFEZH
BEFSERXRAESN 2P EAL ZMABREE]
Y WKERERPEALT 2R AER
A H38.96% ReNREBAARBS4EE T (BE
767,782,000 7t) cH BRI BFWEFRERL 2
38.96% & AN #E 25 201358 A e Ak - A It > A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
(@) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
certain available-for-sale financial assets which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

As both the Company and CEC Technology are under
common control of CEC, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared using the principles of
merger accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. These
consolidated financial statements include the results
and financial position of the companies comprising CEC
Technology Group as if the Acquisition had occurred at
previous balance sheet dates presented. Comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2013 and at 31
December 2013 have been restated on such basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. BEABHEESE (8
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 21 wBEE(F)

(a)  Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules (Cont'd) (a) THEBBHBEHREERR FiiiHEE (&
ATBL R HI T & 0 8 £2013F12 4311
IEFEZHEERERNGERESMERKN2013
FNRANBZGEEEERBERITE:

The effects arising from the common control combination
on the consolidated income statement and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2013
and consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2013 are

summarised as follows:

Amount
previously CEC
reported Technology
DaEmEEZ Group Restated
S8 JFEMNEEER F75
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT
(1)
(i) The consolidated (i) BZE2013%F
income statement 12A31BLEFEEZ
for the year ended mEWEK:
31 December 2013:
Revenue WA 1,308,184 13,422 1,321,606
Profit for the year NF [E i F 223,896 65,586 289,482
(i) The consolidated (i) 20135
balance sheet 1283182
at 31 December 2013: HEEEEEX:
Non-current assets ERBNEE 134,691 526,758 661,449
Current assets MBEE 1,601,013 360,566 1,961,579
Total assets BEMATE 1,735,704 887,324 2,623,028
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 7,739 71,200 78,939
Current liabilities nBEE 733,145 599,128 1,332,273
Total liabilities BERE 740,884 670,328 1,411,212
Total equity Rt TR 994,820 216,996 1,211,816

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EAREFHEHRE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd) 21 REEE(Z)
(@)  Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules (Cont'd) (@) FTEBEBYBEHREEAR FTHA (&
Amount
previously CEC
reported Technology
NEHEL2Z Group Restated
©H PEMNEEHE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(1M
(iii) The consolidated (iii) BZE2013F
cash flow statement 12A31BLLFEZ
for the year ended REHRERER:
31 December 2013:
Net cash generated from/(used in) KETEBEE
operating activities (A 2B %8 394,226 (88,614) 305,612
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EEE (FTA) /EE
investing activities ZIREFHE (75,207) 15,981 (59,226)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (A EX
financing activities ZIREFE (51,853) 18,188 (33,665)
(1) The financial statements of CEC Technology Group (1) HEREREEHZE2013F12A3181EFEE

for the year ended 31 December 2013 are included
using the principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in HKAG 5 as stated above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
had adopted the following amended standards and
interpretation that are relevant to its operations and
effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January
2014:

HKAS 32 (amendments) Financial instruments: Presentation
- offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities

and HKAS 27

(amendments)

HKAS 36 (amendments) Impairment of assets: recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial
assets

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The adoption of the above amended standards and
interpretation did not have significant impact on the results
or financial position of the Group for the current year.

2. EXRETHREE &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont'd)

The following new and amended standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been issued
but are not effective for the accounting period beginning
on 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods

(amendments) of depreciation and amortisation
(effective from 1 January 2016)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (effective from
1 January 2018)
HKFRS15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Annual improvements
2012

Annual improvements
2013

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(amendments)

HKAS 27
(amendments)

Annual improvements
2014

(effective from 1 January 2017)

Changes from the 2010-2012 cycle
of the annual improvements project
(effective from 1 January 2015)

Changes from the 2011-2013 cycle
of the annual improvements project
(effective from 1 January 2015)

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture (effective from 1 January
2016)

Equity method in separate financial
statements (effective from 1 January
2016)

Changes from the 2012-2014 cycle
of the annual improvements project
(effective from 1 January 2017)

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above
new and amended standards to the Group’s financial
position and performance.

2. EASHEEREBE (&)

2.1 REEXE (&)
(b)  FTATER| EANSZTRZFE (&)
DEMGEMARN2014FE1 A1 BEB 2 @ tHBAE

MBI FWBERP T AR EEEE A H R
S AT BT -

BB ER HABRX CERBHETEZ
1657 R FE385% EE (B2016F1B1HEL
(1B3T) )

BB RS AR SR T A (B2018F1A1H
Fo5% FEA)

BB IS mRE £ HEFPZAZANEEZHBA
51558 (B20175F1 A1 BRAER)
2012F F ot 20108 2202F BHZ FE®
#IEE 228 (820155

1R1BE®A)

2013F E ot 0MER2013FBHZFEN

#IEE 228 (820155
1R1BE®A)

BB mRE £ REEFHREBENRHAER
F10REBE B G AfMZEEHETEA (B

R 5285 (1835]) 20161 A1BRAER)

BERGREAFE2R BUMBBREDZE (B

(1B3T) 20161 A1BRAER)
20144F E AU 202 E2014F R 2 FEW
#IFH 228 (82017F1A8
1HBAER)

B2 E B AT IEfE APl Bl RIS RT E R MRS
BMBERR R KRR E -

62  China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
() Change in functional currency of the Company

In prior years, the directors regarded HK dollar as the
functional currency of the Company. On 16 January 2014,
the Company issued a 4.70% unsecured bonds due
2017 in the principal amount of RMB 2,750 million and
the Company’s funds from financing activities have been
primarily denominated in RMB since then. It is also the
Company'’s present intention to raise any future funds in
RMB. The directors reassessed the Company’s functional
currency and decided to change it from HK dollar to
RMB starting from 1 January 2014 due to the change in
the currency of the funds from financing activities and
that majority of the future cash receipts (mainly dividend
income) and expenditures (mainly interest expense) of the
Company are expected to be in RMB.

(d) The new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
(the “new CO”)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable requirements
of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). The
requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the new
CO come into operation from the Group's first financial
year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance with
Section 358 of the new CO. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of the expected impact on the
consolidated financial statements on the initial application
of Part 9 of the new CO. So far management has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

2. BEARETEHRBE (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(@) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business combination by the
Group. The consideration transferred for an acquisition
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in the
income statement or as a change to other comprehensive
income in the statement of comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Acquisition-related transaction costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(@) Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.70). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

2. BEARETHRBEH)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, whichever is shorter and regardless of the effective
date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet dates or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination (Cont'd)

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has been
recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's
investment in an associate includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(d) Associates (Cont'd)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of result of an associate” in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(e) Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement
and determined it to be a joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interest in a joint venture is
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of post-acquisition profit or
loss and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investment in a joint venture includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference
between the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When the
Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint venture.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of a joint venture” in the income
statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint venture have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollar, which is the Group's
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “finance income/
(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
"other gains/(losses) — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. BEABHHESE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd) 2.4 HNEEME (4F)

(c)  Group companies © FEEANLA

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial MERGCAEVERERMS  WeeEHEY IR E R

statements, the results and financial position of all the TR EEETEKE (ETRAKENEE

group entities (none of which has the currency of a JIRBREBRRE®E) MEEMPBIKAIRIATH

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency SEIE AT BE S

different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance sheet — BEMERNEEABERANEENEGER
presented are translated at the closing rate at the ZEEBEXRAHOENMERKRE

date of that balance sheet;

= income and expenses for each income statement = FHWEIR AR AR %G E XK
are translated at average exchange rates (unless B (BRIELERIARER S HHE XD
this average is not a reasonable approximation BEHEENAENE  AKTEEERS
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing BHINERHBE) | &

on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in = FrEREEEMNEY ZBEEMEE K ES
other comprehensive income. FRFERR o

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the EREBGEAERRE BMEGIETENEIREMRE

translation of the net investment in foreign entities are HEHME N ZRE AREM RTINS
taken to other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. EARSTHEME#)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(d)  Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold 5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.70).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred in property less any impairment
losses. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time that the relevant
assets are completed and available for use. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the definition
of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or
for which the market has become less active continues
to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect
of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is under construction
or development for future use as investment property is
classified as investment property under construction. Where
fair value of investment properties under construction is not
reliably measurable, the property is measured at cost until
the earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Investment properties (Cont'd)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
as a revaluation. The resulting increase in the carrying
amount is recognised in other comprehensive income and
increases revaluation surplus within equity. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
the remaining part of the increase is recognised in other
comprehensive income and increases revaluation surplus
within equity.

2.7 Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, and included in inventories.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs, depreciation of machinery and
equipment, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets
and professional fees incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating
leases of land use rights. For the land use rights held for
self-use, the upfront payments are recorded as a separate
asset and are amortised to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over their lease periods.
For the land use rights held for sale, the upfront payments
are recorded as land use rights held for sale. Land use
rights held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

2.9 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

2.11 Financial assets
2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables” (Note 2.13), “cash and cash equivalents”
(Note 2.14) and “short-term deposits and investments” in
the balance sheet.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in the other category. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 1 year of the balance sheet date,
which are classified as current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired.
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.11.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement
and in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not subsequently reversed. Impairment
testing of trade and other receivables is described in Note
2.13.

2.12 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When the receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.16 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the government
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions. Government grant relating to an
asset is included in non-current liabilities, which is credited
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.
Government grant relating to an expense item is deferred
and recognised as income in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Current and deferred taxation (Cont'd)
(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont'd)
(ii) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference
in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on
a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group's contributions to MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to make
contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
b) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

2.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
risks and rewards of properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers and collectibility of related
receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated balance sheet
as advances from customers under current liabilities.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.25 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.26 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Research and development costs (Cont'd)

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk in
respect of HK dollar against RMB. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. In additions,
the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(@) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If HK dollar had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2014 would have been
HK$113,000 higher/lower (2013: HK$184,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of HK dollar denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, entrusted loans and short-term investments,
the Group does not have significant interest-bearing
assets. The average rate on deposits held in banks and
other financial institutions at 31 December 2014 was
approximately 2.63% (2013: 1.95%) per annum. The
entrusted loan to an associate bears interest at 9% per
annum and the entrusted loan to a third party bears
interest at 20% per annum. The average rate on short-
term investments at 31 December 2014 was approximately
4.42% per annum. Any change in the interest rate from
time to time is not considered to have significant impact to
the Group's performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Cont'd)

The Group's interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank and other
borrowings and unsecured corporate bonds. The bank
and other borrowings were at fixed and variable rates and
the unsecured corporate bonds were at fixed rate and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term deposits and investments and trade and other
receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
balance sheet date is their carrying value. The Group has
policies and procedures in place to ensure they are made to
counterparties with acceptable credit quality.

All the Group’s deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term investments are placed or
invested in high quality financial institutions without
significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the
credit quality. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure on credit
risk are set out in Note 24.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities by maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows
of the financial liabilities.
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More than More than
1 year 2 years
but less but less
than 2 years than 5 years
Within 1 year —FHt MEMULE Total
—FR EFREEME EFERLE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TER TER
Group b3
Unsecured corporate bonds BEERCEES 163,842 163,842 3,567,920 3,895,604
Bank and other borrowings BRAOREMEE 94,481 1,274,268 - 1,368,749
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIA
(excluding salary and welfare (TBEENEHR
payables and other taxes payables) B ENHIE) 518,426 - - 518,426
776,749 1,438,110 3,567,920 5,782,779
Company ¥ NG
Unsecured corporate bonds BHERCEES 163,842 163,842 3,567,920 3,895,604
Trade and other payables 5 R EMENFIE
(excluding salary and welfare (T BEERNEHM K
payables and other taxes payables) HAREMTHIE) 83,736 - - 83,736
247,578 163,842 3,567,920 3,979,340

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

3. BXRARER#£)

3.1 BREBREE(F)
@ RBEzEE (&

31 December 2013
2013512 H31H
More than
1 year but less
than 2 years

Within 1 year —FE Total
—FR BTBBMF A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
Group (Restated) AEE (F5))
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 465,136 68,310 533,446
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h e~ 5/ 18
(excluding salary and welfare (B 45 A5 37 B K2
payables and other taxes payables) — E b B FIE) 484,022 - 484,022
949,158 68,310 1,017,468
Company AT
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h e~ 5/I8
(excluding salary and welfare (T BEIEREMEM R
payables and other taxes payables) — E b fERFiHE) 4,382 - 4,382

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings and unsecured
corporate bonds, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, which comprises issued equity and reserves.

3.2 EXERER

AEEBETEANEERBERASE ZEREH
SEEE WEBBCEBRERERDERR
B AR A # o AN 5 B B 58 3R BK (R 45 B2 LA Al
FE—H-

AEBzERNGEBERER (BRRITEEME
EREEMERES)  MARRRERFEERNE
o (BREZRTERLHERE)

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings and unsecured
corporate bonds less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheets, plus net debt.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 is as
follows:

3. BX¥EKRER#)

3.2 EXRRBRER (&)

AEERAENABLRERERRAR B X
TIABETFER N BN ERETE - BERFRIRE
ERBELEAMECEESFRRE LIRS EEY
H-BEABRREEEERBRMIIR 2R
B FREAE

R2014F12A318 AEBzEABEL XM
—|T:

2014

20145

HK$'000

FET

Bank and other borrowings (Note 32) RITREMEE (#732) 1,332,462
Add: Unsecured corporate bonds (Note 29) o EEEREES (HiE29) 3,436,724
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) BB RREFEEY (HiF26) (534,134)
Net debt (EG e 4,235,052
Total equity e B RE 1,101,830
Total capital BARMRER 5,336,882
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 79%

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents exceeded its borrowings by HK$283,234,000.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group's capital risk is
not significant.

3.3  Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

R2013F12A318  AEEZ2BH e RBEE2EEY
BB e 5283,234,000/8 T °

EZeR/AKRERB ZERARARTEKX
3.3 2AnEfE
NAREAEZEMTAREABRAARERE

DEBTI—2=4:

. F—MAREHEDNBHREELREBENE
BHiHh 2 HE CRERE)FH -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HXRKRERE &)
(Cont'd)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 RDAREME (EZ)

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived . FIRAREFENRE-—LABEZR
from inputs other than quoted prices included BN BEESNBENEE (AMER) ki
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or (BEBITE)BRZEBFE -
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived . F=BANEFAETINEREENBE K
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the AEEmSHE (HUBRZ2ER)HER
asset or liability that are not based on observable ERH e
market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the financial assets that are measured at fair REBUARAABEFEZEREEZESHNT :

value during the year are as follows:

Available-for-sale

financial assets AHHESHERE Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- Wealth management products -HEEEER £ -t ] F=® At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT T

At 1 January 2014 R201451518 - - - -

Exchange differences N ZER - - 501 501

Additions 20 - - 328,138 328,138

Disposals HE - = (214,552) (214,552)

At 31 December 2014 H2014%12831H - - 114,087 114,087

See Note 16 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

FHRMEICARAREAEZREMEZ HE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different jurisdictions.
Estimation and judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred taxation provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in the
PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the dividend
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. During
the year, the directors reassessed the dividend policy of
its major subsidiary established in the PRC, CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), based on
the Group’s current business plan and financial position,
certain retained earnings generated by Huada Electronics
would be distributed to its non-PRC registered intermediate
holding company and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this
respect was provided in the year to the extent that such
earnings are estimated by the directors to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the Group for
the earnings of HK$831,921,000 (2013: HK$624,664,000)
expected to be retained by the subsidiaries in the PRC and
not to be remitted out of the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEGEATRAE

41 FEHRRELERIE

AEBEBAR TR BEERBAFER - REE T
BHAER B BN BELA RHG -RAE
EBBRTFERI NAEHBUBEERRZ
MBBET MZSFRIRERBERA NG
NER 2B RSEENEBEERYEHZHME
BMEEHARBELERE -

BIBEFPBEMCEMEHE B2008F1 18 1 %
FERRBEKZE AR REGIMNEEE DR REE
WI0%MEMFEH RAFA EFERAE
EREEBTIRYBRAEFERK LA HH
ZEBRBARILRFEEAETRATARET
AR ([EXREF)HBREBSR  EAETHWET
REBREF DI TEABREIREIER AT -
E it WE B AR A TE R R Dk 8% 5 A X
W RAFERERECHBEEBELRE-

AEBUENTERATEMBARNREETER
AITE B AR R ok R BIIR SN & 58 A831,921,000
7 7T (20134F : 624,664,000/ 7T ) 8% Fl B & 1E
ERIEEE -

PEETFREZERER AT 2014FF])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #ZE2014% 128318 It FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

4.2 Impairment of trade and other receivables

Management reviews its trade and other receivables for
objective evidence of impairment. Significant financial
difficulty of the debtor, probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered as objective
evidence that a receivable is impaired. In determining this,
management makes judgments as to whether there is
observable data indicating that there has been a significant
change in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether
there have been significant changes with adverse effect
on the market and economic environment in which the
debtor operates. Where there is objective evidence of
impairment, management makes judgments as to whether
an impairment loss should be recognised as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables of
the Group at 31 December 2014 is HK$26,407,000 (2013:
HK$54,458,000).

4.3  Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the directors assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value of investment properties of the Group. The fair
value of investment properties are assessed annually by an
independent professional valuer. The valuation is principally
based on income approach by taking into account the
terms of any existing leases and other external evidence
such as current market rents or sales for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation rates
that reflect current market expectation for the assets
being valued. The valuation techniques and significant
assumptions of investment properties are disclosed in Note
16.

4. FEGFHEFTRAE &)

4.2 EBERHEMEWRRIRRE
ERERNEES MEMBYGIRE S TERE
EiE - BB ALRERNU R - B A R REWE
SETHHEER  ARIERIB N FHER
RERYFIAEZEERERE EETRER
ﬁﬁ@%ﬂ%ﬁTTﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁAM%%
ENBERES B LHEBARBEAENT
%&%lk%%ﬁTﬂ%§MEk“@ mEE
BREIZE BEEEHEASRERERERR
FA S °

REBPR2014F12A31BRE 5 K& H b fE U Z 8
B 8 526,407,000/ 7T (20134 : 54,458,000
HEIT) °

43 REVWEIAE

FR EFEVEHEEBHAKREREMELR
BEFZEEBRR -REVMEZAARETFIH
BYEEGHEMELEG -ZAEZTEZERNKE
& FEAEMRA B BRREMIMEF R (10
REDI R ER X2 REMISHENHEE
B)AERRRE Fr{AEEE2RETHHES
ZERCLL XA B - REMEZHBESTEARER
BRERAEM 167 4R FE »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # ZE2014% 128318 It FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the following two operating
segments:

- Design and sale of integrated circuits chips; and

- Development and management of electronic
information technology industrial parks.

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The directors assess
the performance of the two operating segments based
on a measure of operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate interest income and expenses. The segment
revenue and results are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014

5. WARZHER
AEEEREEATRELES L

—  EREBLCHZRFARBEE R
- BIRERMEXEZZERIEE-

ERECREBEEST (EBEERRE) DEHEFN
ERREDEERANRE EELEDM-EF
RIBEZMELED B2 EEEHN (TEERDEN
RAEVFBUA R ) ARF A ERE - &2 8R4
AREEZHIT

HZE2014F12831B L FEE

Development

and
management
of electronic
Design and information
sale of technology
integrated industrial
circuits chips parks
ERER ETFEEEM
BRZ E¥XEz Total
REATRHE BRERER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TExT THET
Segment revenue 2 EIRA
Sale of integrated circuits products HEENERER 1,351,723 = 1,351,723
Rental income from investment REMENHSWA
properties - 5,339 5,339
1,351,723 5,339 1,357,062
Share of result of an associate FEIE — B & R AI R - 18,840 18,840
Share of result of a joint venture EiE—EEERREE - (942) (942)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ %M A BBz - 23,859 23,859
Reversal of impairment provision/ AERE (&)

(impairment provision) 51,265 (10,120) 41,145
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7 & K # #4 & F (34,288) (6,828) (41,116)
Segment results DEELE 326,076 (6,106) 319,970
Unallocated corporate interest income RAEHIR AT S HA 76,658
Unallocated corporate expenses AAEEHRARRAX (30,236)
Finance costs — net BB A —F5E (150,218)
Profit before taxation B 750 Al i A 216,174

PEETFREZERER AT 2014FF])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. WARZHER (#)

HZE2013F12A318 ILEE

Development

and
management
of electronic
Design and information
sale of technology
integrated industrial
circuits chips parks
SXEE BFESEM
BhRZ EXEZ Total
Rt RHE ZRMLER A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (E31)
Segment revenue 2 EBIKA
Sale of integrated circuits products HESKERED 1,308,184 - 1,308,184
Sale of land use rights SHE T A - 9,492 9,492
Rental income from investment REMENHEELA
properties - 3,930 3,930
1,308,184 13,422 1,321,606
Share of result of an associate FEIE — R B & RN AR AE - 16,836 16,836
Share of result of a joint venture JEIE—FHaERAIEE - (853) (853)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & ¥ %M A B EWKZE - 26,642 26,642
Impairment provision HEREE (32,125) (400) (32,525)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ~ #7 & N # #5 & F (22,722) (4,876) (27,598)
Segment results DEEE 273,436 118,511 391,947
Unallocated corporate expenses RAABEHRRRAX (28,706)
Finance costs — net MEKA—FH8 (15,378)
Profit before taxation B 7% A1 i A 347,863
Unallocated corporate interest income and expenses RO RRFBEBMARFAZ BEEDHEE L

are common income and expenses generated from the
operating segments as a whole and therefore they are not
included in the measure of the segments performance.

Revenues of HK$174,233,000 (2013: HK$209,890,000),
HK$172,474,000 (2013: HK$176,704,000) and
HK$161,426,000 (2013: HK$118,828,000), respectively,
are derived from 3 external customers of the Group. These
revenues are attributable to the operating segment of
design and sale of integrated circuits chips.

EEMNEXRWARFX - I RAADFBRE O

=iy

=] °

7 #0174,233,0007% 7T (20134 : 209,890,000
JL) * 172,474,000/ 7T (20134F : 176,704,000/
JC) X% 161,426,000;8 7T (20134 : 118,828,000
BIL) ZBWADRREAEB 2 =RINAEF %
SEWABEBEREXRER N ZRAMEEZEE

2 EB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC and over 90% of the Group's non-
current assets are located in the PRC. No geographical
information is therefore presented.

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS - NET

5.

WARZERESR (2)

%R R B T100% 2 WA KB R 0 B 45 B
1BBO0% 2 B A A LI P B - M AR B A
B E R o

H A A K W a8 — 580

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LLEE
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Government grants X I 46 B 71,533 31,320
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries (Note (3) BB R a5 (H1iE@)) = 8,823
Fair value gains on investment properties BREMEN A LEBEYS
(Note 16) (Kiat16) 23,859 26,642
Exchange (losses)/gains [N (BE), s (956) 680
Gain on disposal of 50% equity HER—HEERRZ
interest in a joint venture (Note (b)) 50% IR A HE 1 2 W e
(HtzE®)) - 120,006
Interest income on short-term TR EEE R B KA
deposits and investments 62,147 -
Interest income on entrusted loans ZEE R B YA 13,455 =
Interest income on available-for-sale At ESMEE
financial assets AEWA 1,056 =
Others HAit (5,820) (2,478)
165,274 184,993

(a) In 2013, the Company liquidated CEC Media
Technology & Service (Suzhou) Co., Ltd and CEC
Integrated Circuit (Beijing) Co., Ltd, both of which
were wholly-owned by the Company and had been
dormant. As a result, translation reserve attributable
to these two PRC established subsidiaries of
HK$8,823,000 was reclassified and recognised as a
gain on liquidation of subsidiaries.

B2013F ARG E2EBMBEZMR —
BEERFENAR P EEHEHWHAERS
(BRM)BRABRPEEKREE (LX)
ERARMELRBE - Fi ZMENFBIAK
377 M B A B EE 48,823,000 It 2 FE X £

BREDBAER S BB RRIBRIK

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS - NET 6.
(Cont'd)
(b) In 2013, the Group disposed of its 50% equity (b)

interest in a joint venture, Guangxi CEC Future
Investment Land Co., Ltd (“Guangxi Future Land”),
to the other venturer of Guangxi Future Land at a
consideration of RMB141,410,000 and recognised a

gain of HK$120,006,000.

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

7. BREESEIZEH

AEA

HAb W A R Wz — 38 (8)

20134  REE LA AR 141,410,0007T
REHEER—M
RIEBEEXERAR ([EAAKREE]))
Z50% B AR TEARKEE IS —6
770 $%15120,006,0007% 7T 2 Ya 2k o

B (BEFER

PIESHER A - HE RIS HEK AFITHAX
ZEBRAOITHMT

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(E%)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER
(Notes 15, 17 and 18) (Htat15 - 17K18) 41,116 27,598
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERANAX (A:78) 200,484 155,134
Changes in inventories of finished goods Bk RIER @
and work in progress FEEH 42,682 33,262
Raw materials and consumables used BT R L B B #E S 738,556 700,445
Research and development costs iff 7% K A BE A AR 214,187 213,002
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment B 5 & E M fE W IE 2 R E
provision for trade and other receivables (Bm) Bt (fat24)
(Note 24) (28,220) 40,668
Reversal of provision for inventories TR BERER (Ki123)
(Note 23) (12,925) (8,143)
Operating lease expenses on properties MEZREHERX 17,392 16,053
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 2 4,259 6,227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EEREAEX
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
(Restated)
(&5)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYET 179,402 139,949
Contributions to retirement schemes BRIRGTEIHER
(Notes (a) and (b)) (H1at@) % b)) 21,082 15,185
200,484 155,134

(@)  The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions
to MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred.

(b)  The Company's PRC subsidiaries participate in
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to retirement schemes in the PRC and are expensed
as incurred.

AEBREFEREREERLBERA
g AEEHBREEAEIHANELR
SIFERASC

ARREFEZ M ERRRE S BEM K
R 28 ERETRRE -FEARRM
TBA#EREZERERKER ZERK
EEE-ZEFTEMNE R RLRAKEBIE
R R E A R DI MER X -

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below:

9. EEREEME

(a) EEMS

BEENHE2014F12A31HIEFE 2B &5
/(I

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Discretionary
Name of director Fees #< - 2HR ENRESFHE bonus Total
EEpgE we BEUER ™ BMERA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEx FHER FER FTER
Rui Xiaowu AR - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou 214N - 750 128 210* 1,088
Xie Qinghua HEE - 750 167 1,020* 1,937
Liu Jinping 2|5 ¥ 200 - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung PRI S 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng iip> e 200 - - - 200
Yin Yongli** TR R 79 - - - 79
679 1,500 295 1,230 3,704
& Discretionary bonus for the year 2013 approved and paid in & 2013F BYIBIEAT 2014 F ERE A% R BE K o
2014.

*x Resigned on 24 May 2014.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors had waived any emoluments during the year.

LS R2014F5 8248 BH{T -

FRAEEYERNEZNERNMESESINSE
AEEY B 2 BEIIERBEZME - FR
MEEENEEAMNE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. BEEREEME &)
EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) E=E=®M£ (£&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BEEFREE2013F12A31BIEFE 2B
December 2013 is set out below: m
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions  Discretionary

Name of director Fees #H& =B R  RAKREETE bonus Total
EEMA W EYEF 3K BB TEAT A&r

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAET TAT

Rui Xiaowu AR - - - - -

Liu Hongzhou** BIAT M ** - 167 3 - 170

Zhao Guiwu*** iR =T Wakal - - - - -

Xie Qinghua WEE - 750 171 1,263* 2,184

Liu Jinping 25T 200 - - - 200

Chan Kay Cheung PRIEE 200 - - - 200

Qiu Hongsheng iip= s 200 - - - 200

Yin Yongli FoKF 200 - - - 200
800 917 174 1,263 3,154

* Discretionary bonus for the year 2012 approved and paid in * 20125 EYIBIEAT 201 3EE EHE A2 J2 B IR »

2013.
5 Appointed on 11 October 2013. e M2013F 108 1M BEZRE-
***  Resigned on 11 October 2013. **x PA2013F10A 11 BEHE-

HEEFEEZERERIR 20145 FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose

9. EERKEEME (&)

(b) EEEEHFMAL

paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as ™

follows:

FARNTAREFHES AR AL ZME0M

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHE T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMAEYET 4,878 4,931
Bonuses TE4T 15,374 13,133
Contributions to retirement schemes IRRETEIE R 364 352
20,616 18,416

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2013: one) director and their emoluments

were within the following bands:

MEEZWEN FATEHE

AAEESHFMALTEIE—% (2013F: —F)E=S

Number of individuals

AE
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T —2,000,0007 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T —2,500,0007% 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,0015% 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T - 3
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7t —4,500,0007% 7T 2 =
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7t —5,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017% 7T —5,500,0005% 7T 1 =
5 5

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of Zf1E

office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

10. FINANCE COSTS - NET 10. BEE KA —FEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&%)
Finance costs: BB RS
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEEFEXZH 218,922 27,056
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties R IERYER
under development BER e (13,199) (2,065)
205,723 24,991
Finance income: BEIWA :
— Interest income on cash and - RekREEEY
cash equivalents FEMA (55,505) (9,613)
Finance costs — net BB AN —F 5 150,218 15,378
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed generally HE2014F12A31BIEFE —REAKH
and used for the qualifying assets was 5.00% for the year REBEREENESMBERCERNEEER
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 5.62%). 5.00% (2013 :5.62% ) °
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e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

106

11. TAXATION 11. BiE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLLEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
(Restated)
(E31)
Current taxation AREFEHIE
— PRC corporate income tax —H R EMERH 19,687 22,050
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —EoEMNZ
(Note (c)) BT
(Biitc)) 5,958 7,533
25,645 29,583
Deferred taxation EAERTE
— PRC corporate income tax —H R EMERH 20,471 21,059
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — RO B2
(Note (c)) BT
(Biitc)) 3,019 7,739
23,490 28,798
49,135 58,381

(a)

(b)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been
made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profit in Hong Kong during the year (2013: nil).

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws of
the PRC, the applicable statutory tax rate of Huada
Electronics is 25% from 1 January 2008. However,
Huada Electronics qualified as an “Integrated Circuit
Design Enterprises in National Planning Layout”
(“ICDE") and thus enjoyed a 10% preferential
tax rate from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2014. Based on management’s self-assessment
and the historical successes in application for the
qualification of ICDE, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics will continue to obtain the qualification
of ICDE for the 2 years ending 31 December 2016.

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

11. HIEBE (&)

(c)  According to the relevant regulations of the (c) WBETBETCEMSHENBEERATE FEH

corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when a BRZIINEIREREAREREREINGE
foreign investment enterprise distributed dividends ENBBE2008F1A1BREEN R Z
out of the profits earned from 1 January 2008 EREABNI0%RTEHFTEH -

onwards to its overseas investors, such dividends are
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation expense on the (d) AEEBRBAEMZHERYHEZSEE
Group's profit before taxation and the theoretical RZEEMEME 2 ERmTIE BERAT -

taxation that would arise using the respective
applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&%)

Profit before taxation B 5% Al g A 216,174 347,863
Calculated at respective applicable REBEAEERE

statutory tax rates FTEBIE 62,541 89,252
Effect of tax concession MIBRREZZE (39,095) (21,002)
Research and development i 9T K 7 8%

costs additional deductions B ZN EE SN BR (20,782) (23,047)
Expenses not deductible for Lk

taxation purposes 53 7,228 7,792
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEFBHEREFIE L

taxation TE 9,367 (12,783)
Withholding tax on distributed profits and ENEEMNRRNEE

current year's undistributed profits RO Bm Az

TRHMEHR 8,977 15,272

Temporary differences for which WEBEREEHRIBEE

no deferred tax asset was recognised TRE=R 2,446 =
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEBREEHEEEZ

asset was recognised (Note (e)) MIAEBE (ffitE)) 18,453 2,897
Taxation expense AR X 49,135 58,381
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

11. TAXATION (Cont'd) 11. BE(#)
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EERIE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
20145128318 2013%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
(Restated)
(%)
Deferred tax assets EXLTRAEE 106,254 112,014
Less: Offsetting of deferred tax liabilities B MR E TR IR A B (46,081) (29,871)
Deferred tax assets (net) EERIBEE (F5) 60,173 82,143
Deferred tax liabilities R IEEE (53,175) (42,672)
Less: Offsetting of deferred tax assets i IR IR & B 46,081 29,871
Deferred tax liabilities (net) RERBEE CFE) (7,094) (12,801)
53,079 69,342

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances with the same taxation authority are

i N Et M3 5H B AR R AL A5 R 2 BR B R IR KT

MAEEMRBBEZEZFHWT:

as follows:
Deferred
Impairment  Salary and  government
of welfare grants
inventories payables B Others Total
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE FERE FEAF A hogis i) Hith St
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE  TERX  T#R TR TER
At 1 January 2013, M2013F181H
as restated (Z5) 6,017 9,161 94,615 9,472 119,265
Exchange differences M =5 49 97 2,418 332 2,896
(Charged)/credited to (T AN) /B RMER
the income statement (2,755) (2,624) (14,862) 10,094 (10,147)
At 31 December 2013, #2013%F12831H
as restated (EZ5) 3,311 6,634 82,171 19,898 112,014
At 1 January 2014, R20145181A8
as restated (E%) 3,311 6,634 82,171 19,898 112,014
Exchange differences &5 =% (17) (26) (344) (10) (397)
(Charged)/credited to (5t N) /e R
the income statement (1,293) (884) (15,689) 12,503 (5,363)
At 31 December 2014 720145128318 2,001 5,724 66,138 32,391 106,254
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e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

11. TAXATION (cont'd) 11. BiE (&)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd) (e) EZEBIE (&)
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
Fair value profits
gains RAEEFZ Others Total
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE DAERE BHREH Hit a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2013, as restated R201351818 (E3) 23,133 - - 23,133
Exchange differences bE X ZR 880 - 8 888
Charged to the income statement MR 10,396 7,739 516 18,651
At 31 December 2013, ®2013F12A31H
as restated (E351) 34,409 7,739 524 42,672
At 1 January 2014, as restated R2014F1818 (E51) 34,409 7,739 524 42,672
Exchange differences [EH =% (56) = 4 (52)
Reclassification to current ENHEEE PREMNAEHAE
income tax payable - (7,572) - (7,572)
Charged to the income statement AN ER 13,321 3,019 1,787 18,127
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 47,674 3,186 2,315 53,175

The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet

include the following:

31 December

REEABEERBERIITNZEBEBENTEE:

31 December

2014 2013
20145128318 2013%F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(Restated)
(E75)

Deferred tax assets EEREEE
— To be recovered after more than 12 months —#& 51218 A 18 Y (@ 31,544 47,825
— To be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A R Uk [El 28,629 34,318
60,173 82,143

Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE
— To be settled after more than 12 months — RN 218 B & E R 3,475 5,062
— To be settled within 12 months — #1218 B RE 3,619 7,739
7,094 12,801

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)
(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
During the year, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of HK$18,453,000 (2013: HK$2,897,000) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$109,685,000 (2013:
HK$17,729,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income.

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 included
a profit of HK$16,508,000 (2013: HK$42,647,000) which
has been dealt with in the separate financial statements of
the Company.

13. DIVIDENDS

11. HIE(£)
(e) EEBIE (&)

BEFREEEDEE 2 BIEBEME#ER
LAE A] B84 3B R 2R 2 B aR i v 1) 2 3R 5 B F7 18 A
AR RAFR  AEBW ARG ] EEAKE R
o JiE FR 4 % A 2 E518109,685,00058 7T (20134 :
17,729,000/ 7T ) iR B RE B TH & = 18,453,000/8
7t (20134 : 2,897,000/ 7T) °

12. RARERFEEEMLER

HE2014F12A3MBIEFE AR EEFAEE
FE(L4R A H TP - A%16,508,000/8 7T (20134 :
42,647,000/ 7T ) B A B R AR &) 2 B 3 B 75
WMRAERE -

13. RE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Special dividend paid: IR RIAR 2. -
HK3.0 cents per share Fh%3.075 1L - 50,747
Proposed dividend: HK2.6 cents BEERE - ZiR2.6/811
(2013: HK3.0 cents) per share (20134 : 3.0/81L) 52,777 50,747
52,777 101,494

Proposed dividend is not recognised as a liability in these
consolidated financial statements.

BRI RN A LR S B 5 R R

&

S—IRE
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e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on

the following data:

14. BRER
BREARRFHIRE THI BB E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
(Restated)
(271)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RAGERFEE
the Company (HK$'000) FE A5 5 i A
(&) 170,108 291,966
Weighted average number of ordinary ARG ESRER
shares for the purposes of B 2 Bz hntE
basic earnings per share FHEAE 1,781,467,573 1,691,560,000

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company
did not have any potential ordinary share outstanding.

HRAAB Y BERARETEEL B ST E
BEREESREERN -

HEEFEEZERERIR 20145 FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. WX -BERKE

(@) Group (a) A*&£H
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor  Furniture and  Construction
BFR machinery vehicles fixtures in progress Total
HEMELE BER#KES 5§ GREREE EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT AT TR THT TR
At 1January 2013, as restated 7420131818 (&%)
Cost AR 22,400 29,149 15,099 3,554 1,714 71,916
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (9,293) (15,738) (4,741) (1,762) = (31,534)
Net book amount REFE 13,107 13,411 10,358 1,792 1,714 40,382
Year ended 31 December 2013, #EZ2013%12831H
as restated LLFE (E5)
Opening net book amount FUREFE 13,107 13,411 10,358 1,792 1,714 40,382
Exchange differences EHESE 392 352 305 134 36 1,219
Additions NE 608 2,043 2,099 7,357 502 12,609
Transfer B - - - 1,742 (1,742) -
Disposals & = = (526) (128) = (654)
Depreciation il (1,608) (4,527) (1,779) (3,449) - (11,363)
Closing net book amount ERKEFE 12,499 11,279 10,457 7,448 510 42,193
At 31 December 2013, 20135128318 (E31)
as restated
Cost 5% 23,400 31,544 16,977 12,659 510 85,090
Accumulated depreciation RitiE (10,901) (20,265) (6,520) (5,211) = (42,897)
Net book amount FEFE 12,499 11,279 10,457 7,448 510 42,193
Year ended 31 December 2014  HZ2014512H31A
LEE
Opening net book amount FOEmFE 12,499 11,279 10,457 7,448 510 42,193
Exchange differences =% 1,053 (476) 751 (17) 131 1,442
Additions NE - 10,196 511 3,042 15,437 29,186
Transfer from prepayment for B AR
acquisition of property transfer ¥ #:21 2 FUB
right (Note 24(h)) (H1i224(n)) 361,020 - - - - 361,020
Redlassification from investment R EME S
properties 322 - - - - 322
Disposals HE (134) - (477) (30) - (641)
Depreciation neE (7,466) (4,427) (2,847) (4,152) - (18,892)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 367,294 16,572 8,395 6,291 16,078 414,630
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A318
Cost A 385,661 41,264 17,762 15,654 16,078 476,419
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (18,367) (24,692) (9,367) (9,363) - (61,789)
Net book amount RHFE 367,294 16,572 8,395 6,291 16,078 414,630

Depreciation expense of HK$796,000 (2013: HK$28,000)
and HK$18,096,000 (2013: HK$11,335,000) has been
charged to selling and marketing costs and administrative
expenses, respectively.

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$17,392,000 (2013:
HK$16,053,000) relating to the lease of property are
included in the income statement.

Hr € 5 X #796,0007% 7T (20134F : 28,0005 7T )
%%.18,096,0005 7T (20134 : 11,335,000/ 7T) 2
DRFFAEE R TISHEREKAMITEHAS

S EMABAL17,392,000/ THE (2013
116,053,000 0) Esf Al R 2 FHER S -
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A =
e MBEHRKRMNT
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. V¥ BERRE #)
(Cont'd)
(b) Company (b) A&AQF
Leasehold Motor  Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Total
HEMERE B BREEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAET FTAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 M2013%F181A8
Cost B AR 220 2,578 329 3,127
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (220) (1,644) (232) (2,096)
Net book amount REHE - 934 97 1,031
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ2013F 128318 ILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE - 934 97 1,031
Exchange differences bE X5 - 10 2 12
Additions NE 59 - 115 174
Disposals HE - = M M
Depreciation nE @) (252) (43) (302)
Closing net book amount FREEHE 52 692 170 914
At 31 December 2013 M2013%12A31H
Cost BN 306 1,906 435 2,647
Accumulated depreciation REHE (254) (1,214) (265) (1,733)
Net book amount REFE 52 692 170 914
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2014F12831BILEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 52 692 170 914
Exchange differences bE N Z 8 - 32 8 40
Additions NE - 474 64 538
Disposals & - = (30) (30)
Depreciation e (12) (228) (65) (305)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 40 970 147 1,157
At 31 December 2014 120145F12831H
Cost B 306 2,412 469 3,187
Accumulated depreciation Z:tiTE (266) (1,442) (322) (2,030)
Net book amount REFE 40 970 147 1,157

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP

16. REYX-FKH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
2014F 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&71)
Beginning of the year F9 391,965 353,693
Exchange differences E X ZERE (1,229) 11,475
Additions NE - 19,850

Reclassification to property, BENEEME-

plant and equipment 5 K 5% 1 (322) -
Government grants received W BRI AT 76 B (4,872) (19,695)
Fair value gains NI BER 23,859 26,642
End of the year FR 409,401 391,965

(@  The investment properties are located in the PRC
and are subject to various tenancies with terms
ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

(b)  The direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental income
for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
HK$492,000 (2013: HK$346,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP
(Cont'd)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm
of independent and qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuation was
principally based on income approach by taking into
account the terms of any existing leases and other
external evidence such as current market rents or
sales for similar types of properties in the locality,
and using capitalisation rates that reflect current
market expectation for the assets being valued. For
all investment properties, their current uses equates
to the highest and best use.

All of the fair value measurements of the Group's
investment properties were categorised into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note 3.3. There
were no transfers of fair value measurements into or
out of Level 3 during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the management
of the Group works with DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors.

16.

(@

RENE-F&E (&)

NEBIREMEN20144 52013512 A31
BzARnBEHEAEEETANBEERNE
U RBEERAUERNEZGHERM —BHER
TERARREBETHE ZHEETE
AR % sFAEAMBEROZERR
HMINMEEE (AN T2 R R Y %
ZBRRMSESKHEBE) W F AR E
FiitECEEZREMSEHZEARLL
EAE-FEREMEREHEATAR
EEAERRERSE-

AEERMEREVENRARBEFELIRR
RARERNREBNE=F -2 A ERG
REMNDBEFBHERMEI3R -RFEAR-
ZEREYPEVEAARBAEBEALED
E=A-

RBERR AEEEEERBERITER
REAAFARINEEEAF =RZIRR
AAENGBENEREE -EEEQARELRR
EXREY BREFTTERKBNREA -
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e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP
(Cont'd)

16.

Information about fair value measurements using

16. REVWE-—FKE (&)

EREANBUBER CBBEAREBETE (5=

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows: FOHWEBERWMT :
Range of
Fair value unobservable Relationship of
at 31 December inputs/weighted unobservable
2014 average inputs
R2014%  Valuation Unobservable BHUBEY tofair value
Description 12A31H2  technique(s) inputs YEHE/ ZUBRC 8B
#5 AE  HERE BUBRRE HE NEFHE BARENER
HK$°000
TR
Industrial and dormitory 381,703  Income approach Term yield 3.5% - 10% The higher the term yield,
buildings-Guangxi Wg FHkEE the lower the fair value
I4RkBEEEF-ER BEERRRE
AREBE
Reversionary yield 7% -10% The higher the reversionary
LT Eap yield, the lower the fair
value
HaBRlR%
AREBIE
Market rent RMB11.62 - The higher the market
[iE2iikA RMB17.09 rent, the higher the fair
per square metre  value
BYHK mEHEES
AREN6T AREER
- AR%17.097
Office building-Beijing 27,698  Income approach Term yield 5.75% The higher the term yield,
BE¥E-ItR Wezs % FEH IR the lower the fair value
HRERlHE
AREBIE
Reversionary yield 5.75% The higher the reversionary
ERkEX yield, the lower the fair
value
BErElEE
AREBE
Market rent RMB194  The higher the market
mHEE per square metre  rent, the higher the fair
BEHAK  value
ARK19T THESES
AREES
Direct comparison Market price RMB36,000 - The higher the market
method M5 ER RMB39,000 price, the higher the fair
BEHBE per square metre  value
BYAK mHEERES
AR®36,000r AnfE#S
— AR #39,0007T
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e M EmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &
17. LAND USE RIGHTS HELD FOR 17. Bzt ERE-KEBE

SELF-USE - GROUP

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
2014F 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(E71)
Beginning of the year F1 1,641 2,092
Exchange differences MEHZR 58 58
Transfer from prepayment for acquisition of EE A TEMNBIE
property transfer right (Note 24(h)) R 2 IR
(HizF24(h)) 14,674 -
Government grants received W BRI AT 76 B - (494)
Amortisation iR (400) (15)
End of the year FR 15,973 1,641

All the land use rights are located in the PRC and with PR T AU R B RIARISRE L 102
remaining lease terms ranging from 10 years to 50 years. S0FHFA °

HEEFEEZERERIR 2014F FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

18. BFEE-F&H

Computer
software
B E S
HK$'000
FAETT
At 1 January 2013, as restated R2013F1818 (E51)
Cost B AR 44,189
Accumulated amortisation ZEET (40,512)
Net book amount R FE 3,677
Year ended 31 December 2013, as restated & Z2013F12H31BLLFE (F3)
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 3,677
Exchange differences MEH ERE (127)
Additions NE 17,524
Amortisation #H (16,220)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 4,854
At 31 December 2013, as restated M2013F12H31H (£7%)
Cost B 61,586
Accumulated amortisation Rty (56,732)
Net book amount BREFE 4,854
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 4,854
Additions NE 25,423
Amortisation 5 (21,824)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 8,453
At 31 December 2014 A20145F12831H
Cost AR 87,009
Accumulated amortisation REr#s (78,556)
Net book amount BEEFEE 8,453

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$21,824,000
(2013: HK$16,220,000) has been charged to research and

development costs under administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Statements

19. MIBARKRE-AXLDH

— COMPANY

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
20145128318 2013F12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Investments — unlisted equity interests, ®E— I ETAREE
at cost 1R ANE 1,309,185 553,280

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

FEMH B AR R2014F 2013F12A31H 2 &7

2014 and 2013 are as follows: (ERUNNE
Interest held
s
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and 2014 2013
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities paid-in capital Indirectly ~ Directly Indirectly
2R RIBERADUE TEREHARER ZREREL 53 Ef R
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability company PRC, design and sale of RMB50,000,000 - 100% -
ERET FE - HREFAR integrated circuits chips AR50,000,0007C
PE SRERLRZ
RitRHEE
CEC Technology (Note 2.1) PRC, limited liability company PRC, holding investments RMB100,000,000 - - -
RERE (HiH2.1) HE BREAAR in subsidiaries AR¥100,000,0007
PE HEZRMBRARRE
China Electronics Beihai Industrial Park ~ PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and RMB150,000,000 100% - -
Development Co., Ltd HE BEREEAH management of electronic AE#150,000,00070
FEEFILBELEZRERAA information technology
industrial parks
B EFEERMEREL
BERER
CEC Xi'an PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and RMB103,500,000 73.91% - -
HEAR B BREFAR management of electronic AR 103,500,0007

information technology
industrial parks

PE BTESRNEREL
BRRER

In the opinion of the directors, the non-controlling interest
of CEC Xi'an is immaterial to the Group and thus the
financial information of CEC Xi‘an is not disclosed.

EXEeRn PEARZHFERERHAEEM
FETEZ RUEBRBETEALTHMBEM:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - 200 A—EBEQAFARE-—FXE
GROUP
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013
2014F 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Beginning of the year F9) 36,708 50,998
Share of movement in reserve FEIE B 2 # 8 - 94
Share of post-tax profit JE 15 BR 750 18 4 A 18,840 16,836
Dividends % 2 - (32,583)
Exchange differences EHZER (40) 1,363
End of the year FR 55,508 36,708
Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2014 and 2013 Bt 4 N BRI R20144 K2013F12 8318 2 #1510
are as follows: T
Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and Interest held
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities paid-in capital JiiEST £
£ RYBERAREE TEREBERER HMREREE 2014 2013
Hainan Resort Software PRC, limited liability company PRC, development and management of RMB160,000,000 40% 40%
Community Investment Bl ERET AR electronic information technology AE®160,000,0007T
and Development Co., Ltd industrial parks
(“Hainan Investment"”) TR EFEERMEXR ERRER
BEEREHEREERE
BRAR ([EREEE])
In the opinion of the directors, the associate, Hainan EEERA BMEATSEREHAEEMNE B
Investment, is material to the Group. 52
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - 200 A—REBEATRE-—XEBR (&)
GROUP (cont'd)
Summarised financial information for Hainan EEBRECHEERBMMT :
Investment:
Summarised balance sheet EEABERHM
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H318 2013412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current i
Assets BE 1,402,196 736,960
Liabilities =N (612,376) (590,734)
Total net current assets ABEEFEAR 789,820 146,226
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 312,925 264,902
Liabilities Bf& (849,253) (204,252)
Total net non-current (liabilities)/assets kR (AE) EE
EBEAE (536,328) 60,650
Net assets EEFE 253,492 206,876
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2 U= =B

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LLEE
2014 2013
201445 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue WA 210,613 69,476
Profit and total comprehensive income ANEE M R
for the year FHEHKRBE 47,100 42,090
Dividends received from the associate U B B N B IR R 12,621 20,051
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE - 200 A—REBEATRE-—XEBR (&)
GROUP (cont'd)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information B 7 & R4l 2 ¥ BR

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information EMIVHERNBAARNEFRNFERE 2=

presented to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in ZREBEHEREAT

Hainan Investment are as follows:

2014 2013

201445 20134

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net assets at 1 January MA1TBEEFE 206,876 239,106
Profit for the year ANEZ 5 47,100 42,090
Dividends &% 2 - (81,458)
Share of movement in reserve el 2 & - 235
Exchange differences MEHZER (484) 6,903
Net assets at 31 December M2 A3 EEEE 253,492 206,876
Investment in the associate (40%) Rt E R FIR & (40%) 101,397 82,750
Carrying amount at 31 December* R12HA31BEREE* 55,508 36,708

e The difference between the carrying amount and * FREEREBLEEFEZERETERNUAIF
share of net assets mainly represented return of EZRERARE -
investment cost in prior years.

21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE - 2. A—RBEEQARIRE—FKEHE
GROUP
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Beginning of the year F19) 22,359 78,818
Share of post-tax loss FEEBRT1& B 18 (942) (853)
Disposal & - (57,208)
Exchange differences bEH =58 (79) 1,602
End of the year FR 21,338 22,359
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE -

GROUP (cont'd)

Particulars of the joint venture at 31 December 2014 and

2013 are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

21. R—BEERARE-FEHE
()

A2 ANaR2014%F K20135F12 8318 2 1B M
T:

7

Place of establishment Principal place of Registered and Interest held
Name and type of legal entity ~ operation and activities paid-in capital iig=2: 53
A% BIUBHRARME TEREHBREYR HAfREREX 2014 2013
Guangxi Future Land PRC, limited liability company  PRC, development and sale of properties RMB200,000,000 28.9% 28.9%
BERAREZE PE BREEAR hE MECERNEE AR %200,000,00070

In the opinion of the directors, the joint venture, Guangxi
Future Land, is not material to the Group, and thus
the financial information of Guangxi Future Land is not

disclosed.

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS - GROUP

EFLRA ALATERARELHAEET
EBTEE - MY BMREERART LY HBE
%o

22. THEHEESHEE-—F&H

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31BLFE
2014 2013
2014 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Beginning of the year F4 2,544 2,467
Exchange differences ME N ERR 492 77
Additions o 328,138 -
Disposals e (214,552) =
End of the year FR 116,622 2,544

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

AL ESREEREIATER:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
2014%12H318 2013412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted: LT

Wealth management products (Note (a)) BIEEEER (#it(a)) 114,087 -
Equity investment (Note (b)) WHERE (Hatb)) 2,535 2,544
116,622 2,544

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERITBRERE
Current assets mENE E 114,087 —
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,535 2,544
116,622 2,544

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 22. MHEHESHEE-X&H (&)
ASSETS — GROUP (Cont'd)

(@  The wealth management products are issued (@) HMEEBRER/  HPERHFRITET ZF
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth VEEBEERDARARERER I
management products are principal protected and MARBHEEABNT1E23FE AR -
with non-guaranteed return, denominated in RMB ZERBEZAANENRZER SHEH TR
and with a term ranging from 1 month to 3 months. 2 HmRMETE -

The fair value of these investment was determined
with reference to the statements provided by the
counterparties.

()  The equity investment represents unlisted equity (b) REREEE—FKPEKILZIELETAF
interest in a company established in the PRC and are WA BRZEEESLBIMNUSHA
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet WMmSER aEREBANALERBERK
date, as these assets do not have a quoted market MELZEEBMFTZE/REKXOUTENE  ER
price, the range of reasonable fair value estimates HEBRKABRETE -
is significant and the possibilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

23. INVENTORIES - GROUP 23. FE-—XFK£H

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
20141248318 20134 12A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000

FET FAT
(Restated)

(&%)

Work in progress E&m 68,839 71,419

Finished goods BIRK fh 179,743 219,845

Properties under development R 205,330 89,378

Land use rights held for sale FHEHE 2 T A 593 595

454,505 381,237

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$781,238,000 (2013:
HK$733,707,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories of HK$12,925,000
(2013: HK$8,143,000) has been credited to cost of sales.

RBAXLFAABENAZTFERER
781,238,0007% 7T (20134 : 733,707,000/ 7T ) °

A 8012,925,0008 T 2 T E B H A B (20134 -
8,143,000/8 L) E B HE KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2. ESRHMEWNKIE
Group Company
AEE RAF
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145128318 2013412A31H 20145128318 20139F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT FEx FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current B
Trade receivables B 5 W R IE 643,871 591,739 1,307 2,486
Less: Provision for impairment — J&f - 8 (B & &
(Note (c)) (H17Z()) (6,647) (45,308) - -
Trade receivables — net Z 5 W EIE
—# 637,224 546,431 1,307 2,486
Other receivables from H i UL
third parties E=FFIE 62,083 79,706 18,988 1,039
Less: Provision for impairment  J& < R {E B4
(Note (d)) (Hiit(@)) (19,760) (9,150) = =
Other receivables from HibERE=7
third parties — net RIB— 5 42,323 70,556 18,988 1,039
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Yk Bt B A 7 FE
(Note (e)) (Hiate) - - 1,394,506 79,049
Other receivables from related ~ E B EEEE A+
parties (Note 36) SRIB (fiiE36) 23,978 33,311 10 220
Undeducted input RHBRA
value-added tax HETEIER 4,451 21,213 = =
Entrusted loan to a third party 4% FHE =72
(Note (1)) L ER
(HtaE)) 101,411 — - -
Amount due from EWERARKRESE
the other venturer of ZE—RE
Guangxi Future Land RIE 21,919 87,547 - =
Prepayments and deposits BRARERZS 18,639 5,480 1,052 765
849,945 764,538 1,415,863 83,559
Non-current ERE
Entrusted loan to BT —MBERR
an associate (Note (g)) ZETER
(Kizt@) 507,054 = - =
Prepayment for acquisition of ~ WEIERBEEZ
a non-current asset (Note (h)) TEfF FRIE
(HaEnh)) - 63,595 - -
Other non-current receivables HAivIEms
FEW TR IE - 13,447 - -
507,054 77,042 - -
1,356,999 841,580 1,415,863 83,559
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 It F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, ESRHEHMEWRIE £)

(Cont'd)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of M2014%F %2013F 128318 "EBRARRZ
trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company B RAMEKRKB RABEREARBEES
approximate their fair values.
Other than the entrusted loans to an associate and a BRGET - HEBERARRE=ZFZ2EFEERIN
third party, trade and other receivables were unsecured B REMERRBYAEREREE -GTAE
and interest-free. Included in the balance of trade SERWRBEERAZERABATESRIEBER
receivables are trade receivables from related parties of 55,958,000/ 7T (20134F : 32,086,000 7T) (M
HK$55,958,000 (2013: HK$32,086,000) (Note 36). i£36) °
Trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company ANEBKARAR2014F 22013F12A318 2
at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are denominated in the B RHEMEBEURRIBEZELE ST :

following currencies:

Group Company
A&EE NG|
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
2014F12A318  2013F1273318 2014128318 2013F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTHT FTET AL
(Restated)
(E5)
Renminbi AR 1,354,945 835,130 1,397,656 76,633
United States dollars T - 2,486 - 2,486
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,054 3,964 18,207 4,440
1,356,999 841,580 1,415,863 83,559
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, BESRHMEWRIE £)
(Cont'd)

(@)  For the design and sale of integrated circuits chips (@ BEXRBECAZRAREEXEBMS
operation, the majority of the Group's sales are with REBZHEANBHO ZEEHA308E135
credit terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining B EREENEREE MR - Mt
amounts are due immediately after the delivery BEFfEERMEXRZERLEEELM
of goods. For the development and management T A—RIeEHESMAEXBLETEE
of electronic information technology industrial BB REMBUWHIERIEE S RIKEIE
parks operation, there are generally no credit term (BRI BB 637,224,000/ 7T (20134
available for rental income. Included in trade and 12A31H :546,431,000/% 70 ) * HER 8 5
other receivables are trade receivables (net of T :
provision for impairment) of HK$637,224,000 (31
December 2013: HK$546,431,000) and their ageing
analysis is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12A318H 2013412AH31H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT
(Restated)

(E71)

Current to 30 days 30BA 220,542 304,259

31-60 days 310 %60H 185,548 76,330

Over 60 days and within 1 year 60 A ERIFA 205,232 129,130

Over 1 year 1A 25,902 36,712

637,224 546,431

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, B RHEHMBEBWFIE (&)
(Cont'd)

(b)  The trade receivables which were past due but (b) F2014%F12A31H EAHBEITEREZ
not impaired amounted to HK$146,649,000 at Z 5 & W K18 £146,649,000/8 7T (2013
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$98,609,000). % 198,609,000 L) ° It F & F FE W FKIA
These related to a number of customers with high THEE LR W MR RIERLE 2 EER
reputation for whom there is no recent history HEFPEM HERESTIAT:

of default, the ageing analysis of these trade
receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

2014128318 2013F12A318

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHT

(Restated)

(E71)

Within 30 days 30HA 70,168 20,023

31 - 60 days 31HZ60H 38,238 18,276

Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ERI1FR 30,916 33,385

Over 1 year 1A 7,327 26,925

146,649 98,609

(¢ At 31 December 2014, trade receivables of (0 H2014%F12H318 ' 6,647,0007% 7T (2013

HK$6,647,000 (2013: HK$45,308,000) were % 145,308,000/ 7T ) 2 B 5 B KIAD #

impaired. The individually impaired receivables BWE B RENERREETEREER

mainly related to certain customers which are in BRAINEBERIFERHRELEER G

unexpectedly difficult economic situations. It was FEUWGRIBTERT A el - Bt B ¥ E &
assessed that these receivables are not expected to REFERERE-

be recovered and thus full impairment provision was
provided against them.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, B RHEHMEBWFIE (&)
(Cont'd)
Movements in the provision for impairment on the AEEBSRWZIBERERE ST
Group's trade receivables are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FATT
(Restated)
(E3)
Beginning of the year F 7] 45,308 4,335
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment provision BB (BmE) S BE (38,340) 40,238
Exchange differences MEHZER (321) 735
End of the year FR 6,647 45,308

(d)

At 31 December 2014, other receivables of
HK$19,760,000 (2013: HK$9,150,000) were
impaired and full impairment provision was provided
against them. Movements in the provision for
impairment on the Group’s other receivables are as
follows:

(d)

M2014%12H31H " 19,760,000/ 7T
(20134 : 9,150,000/ 7T ) 2 E b fE U k18
EWHAETEHEFRE2BRERE K
SEEMBWRIERERE 2 ZSHNOT

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A3MBLFE
2014 2013
20144 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(E%)
Beginning of the year F9) 9,150 8,598
Impairment provision AR 10,120 430
Exchange differences EHZER 490 122
End of the year FR 19,760 9,150

(e)

(f)

The amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured,
interest-free and repayment on demand.

The entrusted loan to a third party is secured and
bears interest at 20% per annum, which has been
fully settled as at the date of these consolidated
financial statements.

(e)

EMMBRARRREAEER 28 BE
EREFEE
BTYE=NZ2ZAEFEAERNIZER

E20%:H B RAFRAMBREA Y &K
BHE2HERN-

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z=20145F12 8318 [FFE

24,

(9)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont'd)

On 24 July 2014, CEC Technology entered into
an entrustment agreement with China Electronics
Financial Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance”) in relation
to the provision of an entrusted loan in the
principal amount of RMB400 million (equivalent
to HK$507,054,000) for a term of two years
commencing from 24 July 2014 and ending on 23
July 2016, and at an interest rate of 9% per annum
by CEC Technology to Hainan Investment, a 40%
associate of CEC Technology, with CEC Finance
acting as the lending agent. 60% of the RMB400
million entrusted loan has been secured by a share
pledge granted by the shareholders holding the
remaining 60% equity interest in Hainan Investment
over 43.64% equity interest in Hainan Investment.

On 1 November 2013, Huada Electronics and
CEC Information Technology Research Institute
Co., Ltd (“CEC Research Institute”) entered into a
transfer agreement (the“Agreement”) in relation
to the acquisition of a property transfer right (the
“Property Transfer Right”) for the acquisition of
all the 6-storey and 118 car-parking spaces on
basement one of Block C of phase one of The
China Electronics Information Security Technology
Research Institute, which is located in the southern
area of Future and Science Technology City, Beigijia,
Changping District, Beijing, the PRC (the “Property”)
from CEC Research Institute. The consideration
for the Property Transfer Right consists of the sum
of RMB296,374,000 (the “Basic Consideration”)
and the additional consideration representing the
difference between the Basic Consideration and the
total development cost of the Property.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group has paid
RMB296,374,000 (equivalent to HK$375,694,000)
(2013: RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$63,595,000)) to CEC Research Institute in
accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Agreement. As at 31 December 2014, the
acquisition of the Property Transfer Right had been
completed and the Property had been completed
and delivered to Huada Electronics. As a result, the
related prepayments were transferred to property,
plant and equipment (Note 75) and land use rights
held for self-use (Note 77). As at the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the transfer of
the legal title of the Property to Huada Electronics
has not been completed and in the opinion of
the directors, there are no legal obstacles to the
completion of the transfer of the legal title of the
Property.

24,

(9)

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2014

T T A e & 0000 90w

BEZREMEBEWRE &)

EA2014$7H24E AR R B A
BEREBEAR ([FEHFHK])E]S
B Eit AE HHWPEE B T 1E A {%fﬂt
ﬁAﬁﬁm%ﬁ%@ﬂiﬁ&éhuﬁ%
WA (8201497 H24 8 BI16 0 A201647
BA23B#& 1)  RFEFEKI%ZAESTEAA
R#400A & 7T (18%1°507,054,000/% 7T )
ZEFEER - B9 260 ARHA00E BT
ZAERBE A SRR E S T60% /% A

HZBEREE 2 BRI E43.64% AR
2B EIRIE AT -

R2013F 1M A1H  EREFEFHATFTEER
A E'«An ([P EPFRT | ) 5T 88
Zta ([ ]) s BT U S E
it,?\mailiitt%ﬂ@ LB 5k = [ AP B
%%1 BLERMMERRE — Rz —= X
&iﬂgT E1SEEM ([ZWE]) 2
%Lpﬁﬁé(%%%ﬁén YIS RE
HERESE A ARK296,374,0007T 2 F
REE ( FEZMHEJ ) R8BS 1 ( ﬂ%ZK

HERZMECBBERIAZEZER

SH
~

HE20145F 126318 | NEEBE
B IR MR B IR XA
296,374,0007T ( #85% 50375,694,000/%
(20134 : A\ R #50,000,0007C (48
63,595,000/ 7T ))
WEYXEEEE TN e
Rt FEKRET - IJH: FERETE S R
HEBEZYE BELR ﬁ(ﬁ/f&w)&
2T E R (HaF17) c RALRE B
FOH EBEZUEZEATERETE
THRATK MEETERE THEE
HEOERATEREWELEER-

HFE

ey

5 @8 3 0 H

= -
‘-___ﬁ‘.- \\
T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

25. SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND 25. EHIERRRE
INVESTMENTS
Group Company
AEH RAF
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145128318 2013%12A31H 20145128318 20134 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FaET FHEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Short-term deposits ySRREE
(Note (a)) (Htit(a))
At banks RITAETT 3,030,835 - 1,723,077 -
At other financial institutions i B 7 #4545 17
— A related party (Note 36) — BB A T
(H17£36) 25,353 - 25,353 -
3,056,188 - 1,748,430 -
Short-term investments RHRE
(Note (b)) (Htstmb)) 202,822 = 139,440 -
3,259,010 - 1,887,870 -
(@)  Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks or () HHHEZRIIERIEBEAIBAULEZR

1T EH A B A M TE 5 - 702014512 A 31
B ZEGFERZEBRERREE2.45% -

other financial institutions with original maturity
over 3 months. The effective interest rate on these
deposits at 31 December 2014 was 2.45% per
annum.

RHRENERTREEERTBTZET
VEEEEMZRE - ZEVEEEER
AERARREDR IUAAREAER
BREHBE AN T1Z26/EA - 72014%F12A4
3MH ZEREZEBFENERLA42%

(b)  Short-term investments represent investments (b)

in certain wealth management products issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with guaranteed return. They are denominated in
RMB and with original maturity ranging from 1
month to 6 months. The effective interest rate on
these investments at 31 December 2014 was 4.42%
per annum.

HEEFEEZERARAR 2014FFH 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 BEeRBESLEEY
Group Company
rEE b
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145128318 2013F12A31H 20145128318 20139F12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHExT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash BHe
At banks and on hand RITEFRE® 83,681 104,087 5,582 5,587
At other financial institutions ~ E {th B F5#4iE 4517
— A related party —EAEE AL
(Note 36) (H1:£36) 58,510 73,259 479 40,701
142,191 177,346 6,061 46,288
Short-term deposits 52 EATF R
(Note (a)) (Kiit@))
At banks RITHETT 225,137 304,093 142,361 31,856
At other financial institutions ~ E th B i i i& 45 15
— A related party —BEEE AT
(Note 36) (H17£36) 166,806 310,342 5,071 25,438
391,943 614,435 147,432 57,294
534,134 791,781 153,493 103,582

(@)  Short-term deposits represent deposits at banks or (a) HEHEFERDNERINPAAIEAXUTZIR

other financial institutions with original maturity of 3 TS A fth B RS M A 17 3K ° 7R20145F 12 A 31
months or less. The effective interest rate on short- B BHERZERENER2.88% (2013
term deposits at 31 December 2014 was 2.88% F:1.95%) °

(2013: 1.95%) per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

27. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

27. BRAREE

Group and Company AEBRARDF
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
BREEIETZ
ZER
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total

EE EBEORAR LES RPEE &t

‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T’ TR TEL TER THET
At 1 January 2013 R2013F151H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171
Transfer to contributed surplus BREZBHRH - - = (600,000) (600,000)
At 31 December 2013 #2013512A318 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 272,255 289,171
At 1 January 2014 ®2014F1410 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 272,255 289,171
Placing of new shares (=il dh) - 338,312 3,383 532,900 536,283
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454

On 25 September 2014, 338,312,000 shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were placed at a price of HK$1.63
per share to independent third parties. The net proceeds
of the placing, after the deduction of the placing
commission and other related expenses, amounted to
HK$536,283,000. The new ordinary shares ranks pari
passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

R2014F9825H AR BRI ER1.63B L&
338,312,0000% &R EE0.0178 7T 2 %D FIB L

= -REEHZH

78 £k

4

m

55 B & 17

M EMEERZ %) A536,283,0008 T &
BREERTZEELTARZERSER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

28. RESERVES - COMPANY 28. f#E—ZA A7
Translation Contributed
reserve surplus Total
ERGEE BB Ll
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2013 M2013F181H - 61,672 61,672
Transfer from share premium EEARKDEE = 600,000 600,000
Elimination of accumulated losses WEH R ER - (214,534) (214,534)
Payment of special dividend RS B P B - (50,747) (50,747)
At 31 December 2013 7420135124318 - 396,391 396,391
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1818 - 396,391 396,391
Payment of dividend R B - (50,747) (50,747)
Currency translation differences ERMBEEE (4,276) - (4,276)
At 31 December 2014 #2014%12H31H (4,276) 345,644 341,368
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), RIEAREIIFRAGNE (LIBF]) ARRIZE
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to BEBKANZIGOIESMERIAZETER T D
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in Section & T A% R
54 thereof.
29. UNSECURED CORPORATE BONDS 29. WMIEHLEEBES
2014
20145
HK$'000
FAET

At 1 January M1A18 -
Addition 0 3,421,244
Interest and issue cost amortised B A B R EIT A 15,480
At 31 December M12H318 3,436,724
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

29. UNSECURED CORPORATE BONDS 29. BERLEES (&)
(Cont'd)

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued a 4.70% 201451168 A ARIBTARBBERAR
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of #2,750,000,0007T 7420174 B HHA4.70% & K
RMB2,750,000,000 (the “Bonds”). The issue price of the HESF([EHF]) BEFE2BRTERESFAEHE
Bonds was 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds 2100%3 A2017F1 16 8 B 8 - EHIRFEFIR
and the Bonds will mature on 16 January 2017. The Bonds 4.70%ET B WEABFFRERINMN - BHERER
bear interest at the rate of 4.70% per annum, payable ERXHMBERAR ETMe

semi-annually in arrears. The Bonds are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The initial fair value of the Bonds was determined based on BH 2R AR ETIRBENEBR TR AR 2 Tt

the residual amounts of the principal after the deduction AesEMETE BEFHEBANERFFE5.44%
of issuance costs. The Bonds are subsequently carried at KA SIBR - A20145F12 8318 &5 26
amortised cost using an effective interest rate of 5.44% HEHREAABRES-

per annum. The carrying amount of the Bonds as at 31
December 2014 approximate its fair value.

30. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS - 30. EEBSMHE—AEE
GROUP
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Beginning of the year F1) 181,342 131,488
Exchange differences MEHZER (796) 4,791
Additions # 0 19,821 71,176
Credited to the income statement e WmE (62,625) (26,113)
End of the year FR 137,742 181,342
Amount mainly represents various subsidies granted by and ZRBAFERRASENERAFEEBEB Mt A

received from local government authorities for financing BT HEWER Z SEMB - kBB IRZA S &
various research and development projects conducted by Wz Rz B BBRERMB 2 AR & 2 HifE
the Group. These subsidies will be recognised as income RN -

over the period necessary to match with the cost that they

are intended to compensate.
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31, EZRHMEMNRKIE
Group Company
AEH PN
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145128318 20134128318 20145128318 2013412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHERT FET
(Restated)
(E5)
Trade payables B 5 I FIE 227,685 285,092 = 1,873
Other payables to Hofth pE AT RAESE A £
related parties (Note 36) I8 (f15236) 63,151 62,318 2,673 438
Salary and welfare payables JE 15 357 B 71,413 78,097 939 1,012
Other taxes payables H fth fE AT A 18 11,141 7,906 290 74
Other payables and H & 5 5RTE )
accrued expenses TEIRE A
(Note (a) (Kiit@) 227,590 136,612 81,063 2,071
600,980 570,025 84,965 5,468

(@)  Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (@ HiENFIERBREREZRENARSH

represented payables for software usage fees for RMFAZEEN2ERHEREREERE A
the purposes of research and development and sales REHZEAFIE -
commissions and accrual for interest payable on
Bonds.
At 31 December 2014, the ageing analysis of the Group's 20145123318 A& B E 5 ENRIBZ KER
trade payables are as follows: DT
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
20145128318 2013412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current to 30 days 30HAR 87,754 99,098
31 - 60 days 31HZ£60H 48,697 66,410
Over 60 days 60H A & 91,234 119,584
227,685 285,092
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$141,103,000
(2013: HK$159,065,000) (Note 36).

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts
of trade and other payables of the Group and Company
approximate their fair values.

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS -
GROUP

31. EFZRHMENTIE &)

AR ZENRBEERAZENEBRALES R
JH 73141,103,0007% 7T (20134 : 159,065,000/%
7T) (Kfit36) -

M20145F K2013F 128318 REBRARA T 2
BEOREMEMANREZEREEEARLBERS -

32. RITREMEE-SEE

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
2014128318 2013128318
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(%)
Bank borrowings repayable: RITEEZENE:
Within 1 year —FR 66,044 66,265
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —FLA LB TEBAMF 1,266,418 66,138
1,332,462 132,403
Other borrowings repayable: HMEE 285 :
Within 1 year —FR - 376,144
1,332,462 508,547
Less: Amount due within 1 year included in B EFARBBER—F
current liabilities REIE RS (66,044) (442,409)
Amount due after 1 year —F & F R FIE 1,266,418 66,138
Secured (Note) SR () 1,332,335 157,715
Unsecured EAKA 127 350,832
1,332,462 508,547

Bank and other borrowings were arranged at fixed and
variable rates. The effective interest rates of the Group’s
bank and other borrowings ranged from 2.085% to 6.55%
at 31 December 2014 (2013: 6% t0 6.55%).

The bank and other borrowings are all denominated in
RMB and their carrying amounts approximate their fair
values.

BITREMEENIREREREETH 12014
F12A31MH AEERTEEMEENZTKRF
KA F2.085%E6.55% 2 @ (2013F : 6% &
6.55% ) °

RITREMEEGUAREFHE - MHEKEES
HARRERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS - 32. ROTKHMEE-A&EEH (&)
GROUP (cont'd)
Note:  The bank and other borrowings were secured by the following Miat: RITREMEEANTEEEER:
assets:
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014%12H31H 201312 H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
(Restated)
(&51)
Buildings and construction in progress BFRERTE - 7,938
Investment properties TEYE 156,781 174,072
Land use rights held for self-use B Az L RE 1,438 1,641
Land use rights held for sale FHER & 2 Tib (R 593 595
Short-term deposits ISEEREE 1,305,856 =
1,464,668 184,246
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

33. CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM 33. KR¥ (FTA) EE2RE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before taxation B 5 A ) 216,174 347,863
Adjustments for: EE
Depreciation of property, L ER =0
plant and equipment REIE 18,892 11,363
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 21,824 16,220
Interest income F B U A (131,107) (11,122)
Interest expenses F B H 205,723 24,991
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries NEENEINCE- S = (8,823)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment FE R - 98
Fair value changes on investment properties KBEMENREES (23,859) (26,642)
Amortisation of land use rights held for self-use & FB 2 = b {8 FR 12 % £ 400 15
Share of result of an associate i ik AN (18,840) (16,836)
Share of result of a joint venture JElE—FRAaERAIREA 942 853
Gain on disposal of 50% equity interest HER—HEERFIZ
in a joint venture 50 % B AN fE 5 2 WL E - (120,006)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment provision B REMEWKIEZ
for trade and other receivables WA (BEE) B (28,220) 40,668
Reversal of provision for inventories FEZEERED (12,925) (8,143)
249,004 250,499
Changes in working capital LEESEH
Inventories T (60,342) (27,228)
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A e W GhIE (170,039) 28,057
Deferred government grants iR RE AT 5 B (43,600) (49,854)
Advances from customers EFEEMNRIEA (21,489) (20,478)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH MR FRIB 24,666 181,872
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& (TR EEZRe (21,800) 362,868
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

34. COMMITMENTS 34, EiE
Operating lease commitments REHERE
(@)  The Group and the Company's future aggregate (@ AEBERARGRETAFRZBE R
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable REMEZREHEM BN RE N 2 &
operating leases for factories and office premises are REERIBAFNT :
as follows:
Group Company
rEH b N
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145128318 2013%12A31H 2014%12H318 2013F12A31H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FEx FHET
(Restated)
(&51)
Not later than one year 1R 9,070 14,538 2,405 1,028
In the second to fifth year E2FEFSFN 554 8,593 341 852
9,624 23,131 2,746 1,880
(b)  The Group's future aggregate minimum lease rentals (b) AEERBTAIFBRIEBEMEZLEH
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases EmMERARRER 2 HEBSHEWT :
for investment properties are as follows:
Group
AEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
20141248318 2013412A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Not later than one year 1F R 3,593 1,404
In the second to fifth year F2FEEFN 3,181 33
Over five years FBIBSF 94 -
6,868 1,437
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. XEAR

The Group did not have any material contingent liability at 2014512 A318 AEBUBEMERKEE
31 December 2014 (2013: nil). & (2013F : &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material transactions in
the ordinary course of business with related parties during
the year:

(a) Significant transactions with related parties

36. BABATRZRERR

BRAGEMBREEMBOERBENR S M E
BN RAFEAREENBEXEEES LA
BATETT TISHERRS:

(a) EHEHBEBMATIZEAXRS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
CEC FEHEFEE
Guarantee fee ERE 354 2,105
Companies under common FTHHEFEE
control of CEC HEZEHZ AR
Sale of products HEE M 172,652 92,950
Purchase of goods and services FIEE m kR 471,949 451,708
Interest income FEMA 5,171 3,204
Rental expenses HeEZ - 992
Interest expenses F BT 15,873 18,902
Property management fee MEERE 2,903 2,874
Fees and commissions for financial services MR FEE
pS¥liika 562 283
Borrowing from China Electronics Corporation China Electronics
(BVI) Holdings Company Limited Corporation (BVI)
("CEC (BVI)") Holdings Company
Limited ([ CEC (BVI) J)
=31 - 10,000
Repayment of borrowing to CEC (BVI) EECEC BVVEE - 10,000
Addition of borrowing from CEC Finance P ENBEE 195,621 439,873
Repayment of borrowing to CEC Finance BETEVBEE 562,883 294,502
Associate N
Interest income F B HA 11,087 -
Entrusted loan ZEEX 507,054 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & £2014F 128318 L F &

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. BAMEALIRFRERR(E)
BALANCES (Cont'd)
(b)  Significant balances with related parties (b) HERBATZEXEE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
2014512A318 20139 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(Restated)
(&%)
CEC FERETE
Other payables H th B~ F08 61,126 61,117
Companies under common ZHEEFEE
control of CEC HEEHZ AT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 55,958 32,086
Other receivables H b & YRR 3,696 242
Deposits 73R 250,669 383,601
Trade payables B SN IR 141,103 159,065
Other payables H h fE N RKIE 951 -
Borrowings BE = 370,121
Associate i /N
Entrusted loan EFXER 507,054 =
Other receivables H b R U FRIE 20,282 33,069
Other payables H h fE < RRIB 1,074 1,201

Other than the deposits, entrusted loan and the borrowings
which is interest bearing, the above balances with related
parties were unsecured, interest-free and settled according
to the contract terms.

(c) Key management compensation (c)

FTEEBAEME

BEF ZRERREBEERM BN BB AL
RERR R 2 B Y RIEA R &

B o

=

Year ended 31 December

BZEZE12A31BLLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHE T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ENEMET 4,442 3,991
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIE R 347 225
4,789 4,216
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IEUBERRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BEN2A3MBLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20145 20134 20124 20114F 2010%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THT THT THET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (&%) (&%) (&%)

(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE®) (&EZ) (REBER) (REEZ) (REER)
(i) @) @ (i)

Revenue WA 1,357,062 1,321,606 1,166,896 1,014,410 620,966
Profit for the year attributable to  AEEHFGFER
owners of the Company ARAERFEE 170,108 291,966 271,126 103,892 42,426
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IFUMBERRE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December
12A31H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
201445 20134 20124F 20114 20104F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FHET FET FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)
(Audited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RER) (&EZ) (REBER) (REEZ) (REER)
(i) (i) @i (i)
Total assets BEARE 6,726,268 2,623,028 2,248,606 1,782,685 1,368,369
Total liabilities BEMS (5,624,438)  (1,411,212)  (1,230,736)  (1,027,423) (829,696)
1,101,830 1,211,816 1,017,870 755,262 538,673
(i) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December (i) A Z20104 - 20114 - 20124 K%20134F12A318 1k

2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 are restated using the principles
of merger accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. Details of
which were disclosed in Note 2.1 of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.
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